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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Ltd ('VHFCL') is a Public Limited Company registered with National
Housing Bank ('NHB') as a Housing Finance Corporation. The Company was incorporated on February 04, 2005
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956.

If you are self-employed and without comprehensive documented income or adequate credit history, getting a
home loan can prove to be a huge challenge in India. This is because traditional lenders in the current ecosystem ﬁnds it diﬃcult to ‘ﬁt’ your case into their income assessment methods. Consequently, potential home
buyers like you end up borrowing from informal lenders or sometimes abandon the dream of owning a home,
despite your need or indeed the basic ability to service the loan.

Vastu Housing Finance is addressing this gap by using a combination of technology and the traditional
distribution model to provide simple, easy and ﬂexible loans and through its unique ability to acquire and
underwrite large volumes of such loans, serve this under-served community.
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MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRPERSON
It gives me great pleasure to share your company's progress during the year.
Over the last couple of years, Vastu has been laying down a strong
foundation by investing in technology, people and best-in-class
underwriting processes. This year your company emerged stronger, despite
a challenging macro environment.
The lending sentiment in the second half of the year was subdued due to
concerns over the industry's overall asset quality. As a result, the industry
had to face severe liquidity squeezing, asset-liability mismatches and
slowdown in growth. Despite this industry overhang, your Company has
been able to excel at all its metrices. Vastu's AUM at the year-end stands at
more than INR 1,300 crores, representing an 80% growth over the previous
year. This healthy growth is accompanied by pristine asset quality and strong
return metrics – gross NPA of less than 0.1% as at March 31, 2019 and
Ms. Renuka Ramnath return on assets of 2.7% for FY 2018-19. Your company has been able to
navigate this diﬃcult environment on the back of its prudent underwriting practices, ability to re-price its
asset portfolio, low leverage and a balanced asset-liability position. Vastu's credit rating now stands at
A/Stable from 4 (four) rating agencies, which is further a testimony to your company's performance and track
record.
Vastu has continued to invest heavily behind the 2 pillars which have held it in good stead – people and
technology. Your company continues to bolster its management team by recruiting experienced retail ﬁnance
professionals from reputed organizations - the total staﬀ strength has now reached 528. Employee
engagement and retention have been top priority items for the company since inception. In addition, Vastu
has relentlessly focused on making technology as a diﬀerentiator. In addition to your company being largely
paperless across activities, signiﬁcant focus is being directed towards enhancing use of technology in
enabling better and faster decision making.
In over three full years of operations, your company has built strong fundamentals around people,
technology, customer analytics, product and risk management. Without diluting any focus on the housing
ﬁnance business, Vastu would leverage this experience in housing ﬁnance scale-up to launch its NBFC
platform (100% subsidiary of the housing ﬁnance company). Entering the market as a diﬀerentiated
technology-driven lender, Vastu NBFC will commence business with Used Vehicle Loans, LAP, Business
Instalment Loans and Personal Loans. In addition to the rich experience of the founder team and senior
management team in managing the proposed NBFC products, your company is strengthening its team by
bringing in product specialists who will lead various product verticals. Vastu NBFC has received the NBFC
license from RBI and is in the process of infusing equity capital of INR 2,000 mn into the venture. The equity
capital infusion is part of a larger rights issue round of INR 4,000 mn, which was extremely well received.
Overall, your company has grown from strength to strength to become a recognized player in the ﬁnancial
service industry. With an ambition to become a dominant ﬁnancial services institution in the future, Vastu will
leverage its existing strengths and foray into multiple other products through the NBFC entity.
I would like to conclude by extending my heartfelt thanks to the entire team of Vastu, our customers,
regulators, lenders, board members, and other stakeholders, without whose support all these initiatives and
achievements would not have been possible.

Sincerely,
Renuka Ramnath
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MANAGING
DIRECTOR'S MESSAGE
Dear Members,
I am pleased to present this Annual Report to you, which details Vastu's
performance in its fourth year of operations post change of ownership and
control. During the last four full years of operation, Vastu has built strong
fundamentals around people, technology, customer analytics, franchise,
product & risk management. Today, Vastu is at the forefront of technology-led
innovation, data science and analytics-backed risk management systems and is
amongst the few companies in India to have a complete paper-less loan
approval process.

At Vastu, our focus segments are primarily the lower and emerging middleincome groups, who are otherwise underserved by traditional ﬁnanciers. By
using a unique combination of technology and traditional underwriting
models, we are able to provide simple, easy and ﬂexible loans to address the
needs of this segment.

Mr. Sandeep Menon
We are proud to share that our approach has enabled us to cater to more than 13,500 customers over the past
four years. Despite the perceived risks associated with these segments in India, our proprietary technology
platform and prudent risk management framework has enabled us to build a pure retail portfolio with best in
class asset quality.

FY 2018-19 has been a challenging year for HFCs and NBFCs in India, due to the overall economic slowdown
combined with liquidity challenges post the crisis. During the second half of the ﬁnancial year, with banks
slowing down lending to HFCs and NBFCs, the sector witnessed a highly illiquid market situation aﬀecting many
key players. Further, the cost of funds for the HFCs and NBFCs rose signiﬁcantly, depleting margins. Throughout
this period, Vastu remained comfortable on liquidity, with no disruption to regular business. Our strong business
model underpinned on robust risk management, prudent liquidity management, responsible leadership and
strong shareholder pedigree, has allowed us to scale new heights even against tough market conditions.

Vastu takes immense pride in its people. Over the years, we have successfully built a team of highly energetic
and passionate individuals with domain depth and credibility from experience, highest standards of integrity and
a predilection for innovation. Through focused coaching, training and facilitating an organizational culture that is
open and respects feedback, we were able to retain and grow talent while successfully adding more members to
the Vastu family. We are proud to have built a team of more than 500 talented individuals that work beyond
boundaries, leveraging each other's strengths, to build a respected franchise where people enjoy working
together making Vastu a credible, and diﬀerentiated institution.

We are an organisation that thrives on merit and a high-performance culture. During the four years of operation
there were over 300 people who have been promoted and given the next level of opportunity to showcase their
talents. We believe in the philosophy of growing from within, wherein individual employees grow as the
organisation does.
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Some of the key business highlights, including achievements in the FY 2018-19
are given below:
We expanded our geographical footprint from 35 to 44 locations PAN India, and added 62 new members,
taking our team strength to 528 in March 2019.
Average sales team in FY 2018-19 grew 23% compared to FY 2017-18, while our AUM increased by
approximately 80% to INR 1,336 crore in the same time period, highlighting a highly productive and
focused on ground team.
We closed FY 2018-19 with a gross NPA of less than 0.1% as on March 31, 2019 and return on assets of
2.7% for FY 2018-19.
We have received rating upgrades from all major credit rating agency in the past twelve months. As per the
extract of Crisil's recent rating rationale “the upgrade reﬂects strengthening of Vastu Housing's ﬁnancial risk
proﬁle, backed by improvement in capitalisation and proﬁtability, continued stability in asset quality (which
remains best amongst peers), fairly diversiﬁed resource proﬁle, and comfortable liquidity position with nil
dependence on short term borrowings”
Our focus on productivity, operational eﬃciency along with strong risk management practices, proprietary
technology and data science helped us register a 105% increase in PBT and a 92% increase in PAT between
FY18 and FY19 while maintaining best in class asset quality
I am glad to share that we will leverage the Vastu franchise, goodwill and technology platform, to launch
our NBFC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the housing ﬁnance company focusing on "SME- business loan,
loan against property, used vehicle loan and consumer loan segment. We are building adequate leadership
and operational capabilities, to develop identiﬁed business opportunities over time in line with market
conditions, and in a prudent, well calibrated manner.
We have received the NBFC license from RBI and are in the process of infusing equity capital of INR 200
crore in the NBFC in tranches, the equity capital infusion is part of the larger rights issue round of INR 400
crore which was extremely well received.
Our continued investment in our in-house technology platform and data science capabilities has enabled us
to keep up with the dynamic needs of the consumer lending business. Through increased focus on data
analytics this year, we continued to remain ahead of the curve in identifying potential opportunities and
risks which helped us maximize consumer proposition, protect the company's franchise value and improve
our technology leverage.
As we step into FY 2019-20, we are conﬁdent of our abilities to build a large, credible and diﬀerentiated
ﬁnancial services platform. Our focus in the coming year will be to continue to retain and grow our talented
team as we further scale operations and expand in new markets. We strive to maintain our productivity at
levels above industry average, while ensuring conservative, careful lending line with our risk appetite.
Finally, I would like to express our sincere thanks and gratitude to our Shareholders, Bankers, Stakeholders,
Partners, Lenders and the Regulator, National Housing Bank, besides all our team members for their
continuous support and cooperation.

Sincerely,
Sandeep Menon
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KEY PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Customer Serviced

Branches

Employees

13,500+

44

528

AUM

NPA

Disbursements

1,336+ Crs

0.09%

1,600+Crs

Capital Adequacy
Ratio

Net Proﬁt

NIM

83.24%

37.65 Crs

5.50%

Highest Credit Rating

A/stable
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

GROSS LOAN DISBUSREUSMENT IN INR CRS

TOTAL INCOME IN INR CRS

760.9

187.69

632.7
95.00

198.3

21.99

15.5
3.42
FY 16

FY 17

FY 18

FY 19

FY 16

AUM IN INR CRS

FY 17

FY 19

FY 18

PROFIT AFTER TAX IN INR CRS

AUM in INR Crs

37.65

19.61

0.46
(1.77)
FY 17

FY 16

RETURN ON EQUITY

FY 19

FY 18

RETURN ON ASSETS
9.7%

3.2%

8.0%

2.7%

0.2%

0.4%

FY 17

FY 18

FY 19

FY 17
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Our
Culture
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BOARD of
directors
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Ms. Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson & Nominee Director
Ms. Renuka Ramnath joined the company in July 2017 as a Director and became the Chairperson &
Nominee Director of the company. She is also the Founder, Managing Director & CEO of Multiples
Alternate Asset Management Private Limited (“Multiples”).
Renuka brings on board her deep experience of raising, investing and returning third party capital
across several economic cycles. She looks to build Multiples as a platform to channelize long-term
capital, to create valuable enterprises and successful entrepreneurs. She draws motivation from the
fact that supporting entrepreneurs to build sustainable businesses has the potential to generate
employment, to create ripple eﬀects in the Indian economy and to facilitate the greater process of
nation building.
She has spent over three decades in the Indian ﬁnancial services sector across private equity,
investment banking and structured ﬁnance. As one of the early private equity investors in India, she
played a pivotal role in shaping the market both in terms of leading pioneering investments such as
buy-outs as well as opening new pockets of capital for investment in Indian private equity. In her last
role as the MD & CEO of ICICI Venture for close to a decade, she has contributed in many ways to the
evolution of that ﬁrm to one of the largest private equity funds in India.
Renuka holds a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from VJTI, University of Mumbai and an MBA from the
University of Mumbai. She has also completed the AMP from the Harvard Business School.

Mr. Samir Bhatia
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Samir Bhatia is a Non-Executive Director at Vastu. Samir is a serial entrepreneur who brings a strong
mix of entrepreneurial passion and deep knowledge of the SME lending space. He started SMEcorner,
India's ﬁrst online platform for SME loans, in response to a signiﬁcant and growing SME ﬁnancing gap in
India that could be eﬀectively served by the SMEcorner platform.
Samir brings 30 years of experience from leading companies such as Citibank, HDFC Bank, Barclays Bank,
and Equifax. Samir is an avid runner (he has completed 25+ marathons and half marathons to date) and
an animal lover.
Samir is a Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a Cost
Accountant from the Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of India.
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Mr. P.H. Ravikumar
Non-Executive Nominee Director
Mr. P. H. Ravikumar is a Non-Executive and founder Director at Vastu (post change of ownership and control).
He has been an Independent Director and Non-Executive Chairman of the Company from January 2014 till
July 2017.
He was a part of the core team which set up and built ICICI Bank. At ICICI Bank, his responsibilities included at
diﬀerent points of time, business strategy, treasury, corporate banking and also risk management. As the Head
of SME & Agri Business in the merged ICICI Bank, his role included building and growing the bank’s portfolio in
these sectors both on liabilities as well as on assets side, apart from services to these sectors. In its ﬁrst full year
of functioning, the bank emerged as the second largest lender to the agri business sector in India. He was also
the Founder Managing Director and CEO of National Commodities & Derivatives Exchange Ltd.
He is also on the boards of several other companies including Bharat Financial Inclusion Ltd., Dotex Ltd. (a
100% subsidiary of National Stock Exchange Ltd.) both as a Chairperson, Aditya Birla Capital Ltd., Bharat Forge
Ltd., Escorts Ltd., UTI Retirement Solutions Ltd.

Mr. Sudhir N. Variyar
Non-Executive Nominee Director
Mr. Sudhir N. Variyar is a Nominee Director at Vastu, he joined Multiples Alternate Asset Management in 2009
at inception. Sudhir has been in the private equity industry since 2005 and has a strong investment
management track record.
Prior to Multiples, Sudhir was a Senior Director at ICICI Venture. In this capacity, Sudhir led investments in the
ﬁnancial services and energy sectors and was part of the Investment Committee at ICICI Venture.
At Multiples, Sudhir is one of the Investment Committee member. Sudhir is also on the Board of Vikram
Hospitals and Delhivery Private Limited.
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Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna
Independent Director
Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna, Independent Director at Vastu, is a qualiﬁed chartered accountant and a fellow
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India with over 42 years of association across various
professional services ﬁrms. Over his extensive tenure, to name a few Mr. Natrajh held key positions such as the
Country Head of Audit at KPMG and RSM in addition to partner positions at EY and PwC.
For most part of his association and by virtue of his position he was involved with promoters and founders in
shaping the broader and long-term vision of the various organizations.
He recently retired from the services of SR Batliboi LLP and works with certain companies as a ﬁnancial
consultant. He was also associated with iconic companies such as Infosys, Wipro and Dr. Reddy's Lab as
Engagement Partner and by virtue of which, he possesses deep insight into and understanding about the
working of Boards, Audit Committees, their roles, responsibilities in evolving and implementing strategy,
culture, branding and in setting the tone at the top through the communication on policies and procedures of
the organization. He has an expert knowledge of the organization's business structure, policies and processes,
risk management and governance structures.
Mr. Natrajh was a part of the Accounting Standards Board of the ICAI. He has been speaking at public forums
on matters of importance to the profession, lecturing on Management Accounting and Taxation at some of the
leading institutions oﬀering post graduate courses in Management Studies (and all aﬃliated to the Mumbai
University).

Mr. Vijay Kumar
Independent Director
Mr. Vijay Kumar is on the Board of the Company as an Independent Director since January 2018.
Mr. Vijay Kumar has over 30 years of experience in the Banking and Information Technology sectors. He worked
with the NIIT Group from the year 2000 until August 2012. During this period, he was responsible for M&A and
corporate ﬁnance activities of NIIT and NIIT Technologies and was involved in several large transactions
involving acquisition and divestiture of companies, joint ventures, strategic alliances and corporate
restructuring.
Prior to the year 2000, he worked with the ICICI Group for over 15 years. He was involved in various roles with
project ﬁnance and investment banking. He advised several companies across industries in equity and debt
raising, M&A and corporate structuring. His last position with the group was with ICICI Securities, as Head of
Investment Banking. Since August 2012, he was also associated as Advisor/ Director, with companies in the BPO,
Media, and Private Equity areas, besides his role as a consultant with NIIT Technologies. He is currently serving as
an independent director on several boards. He holds a B. Tech degree from IIT Delhi and an M.B.A from FMS,
University of Delhi.
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Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak
Independent Director
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak joined the Board of the Company as an Independent Director on March 2, 2015. He
is a Sr. Chartered Accountant and the Managing Partner at G S Nayak & Co, Mumbai. He leads the Audit,
Taxation and Bank Audit team.
He has researched extensively on the emerging issue of convergence into Global Accounting Standards
called IFRS including transition, reporting and audit.
He is instrumental in rendering professional advice on International Tax issues including DTAA application
and Transfer Pricing. He is also an Independent director in some Public and Private Limited companies in his
professional capacity.

Mr. Sandeep Menon
Managing Director & CEO
Sandeep Menon is the Founder Managing Director and CEO at Vastu (post change of ownership and
control). He is a senior banker with over 23 years of diverse experience in General Management, Business
Strategy and Risk Management with various country level business leadership roles across Consumer
Lending, SME Lending, Home Loans, Personal Loans and Commercial Finance across leading Foreign
Banks and Financial Institutions such as GE Capital, Standard Chartered Bank and Barclays Bank PLC.

He has built large lending business across secured and unsecured lending. Sandeep was part of the
founding team at Barclays Bank PLC in India as the Director and Head of Retail Assets and Banking
Strategy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1.Indian Economy Performance & Outlook
FY 2018-19 started with the Indian economy
registering a steady growth of 8.2% in Q1. However,
in the backdrop of a generally volatile global
economic environment, growth witnessed a
relative decline and ended at 7% by the end of FY
2018 -19. Even at this rate, India still continues to be
one of the fastest-growing major economies
globally.
Experts' economic outlook pegs India's GDP
growth in FY 2019-20 to range between 7.0%-7.2%.
It is important to note that in FY 2019-20, global
economic growth is expected to stabilize at 3.2% 3.5%. For India, sustaining a growth rate of 7% or
higher, in such an environment, will entail
strengthening its position as an important global
player while also enhancing its share in global
income.
2.Industry Overview
The Indian mortgage market's contribution to GDP
remains signiﬁcantly low. Even though it has
witnessed a growth of nearly 300 basis points
between 2007 and 2018, it is still below 10% of GDP,
considerably lower than that in developed markets.
In residential housing, government policies have
given signiﬁcant impetus to growth, particularly in
the aﬀordable housing segment. The intent to
reach out and help those in need is reﬂected clearly
in the features of schemes such as Pradhan Mantri
Awas Yojna (PMAY), which includes geo-tagging of
units, interest subsidies, allotment of the house in
the name of the female head and seamless transfer
of funds to the beneﬁciary through digital
channels. Rising urbanization, nuclearization of
f a m i l i e s , i m p r o v i n g a ﬀ o r d a b i l i t y, b e t t e r
connectivity and a shortage of housing among
lower income segments drives demand in the
housing sector.
There are now a large number of new players
entering the housing ﬁnance segment taking the
total number of active players to 99. Of these,
several new entrants are professionally managed
and private-equity backed. Almost all the new
players are focused on the aﬀordable housing
niche. The potential in the aﬀordable housing
segment has also attracted several established
larger Housing Finance Companies (HFCs).

Lending in aﬀordable housing segment needs to be
managed well, with a deep understanding of the risks
coupled with well-controlled processes. The diversity
of customer proﬁles and businesses that constitute
the demand for aﬀordable housing is signiﬁcant. It
oﬀers an opportunity to charge a higher yield, to
oﬀset the risks arising from the informal nature of
businesses and the corresponding cash ﬂows of the
borrower. Lending to this ecosystem must be
governed by prudent risk management practices,
technology-driven process ﬂow and robust credit
assessment capabilities to keep delinquencies in
check. Digitized processes help in easing out the
pressure on margins by reducing the high cost of
underwriting borrowers in this segment.
In the short-term, the housing sector is expected to
grow at a slower pace than earlier years primarily due
to the impact of the Real Estate Regulatory Authority
(RERA). The eﬀect during the initial years of
implementation will moderate growth in the real
estate sector, as the market works towards
implementing the required compliance controls.
Once this stabilizes, the underlying potential oﬀers a
huge upside for growth, which will start unfolding in
the coming years.
Between Dec-17 and Dec-18, the total outstanding
housing portfolio in India grew by approximately 18%,
moving from INR 15.9 Lakh Crores to INR 18.7 Lakh
Crores. The number of total active mortgage loans in
the same period rose 12% approximately, moving
from 13.5 million to 15 million, an addition of over 1.5
million accounts in the period mentioned.
3. Aﬀordable Housing – Opportunities and Challenges
Lending potential in the aﬀordable housing segment
based on housing shortage estimates published by
the Ministry of Housing and Urban Aﬀairs ranges
between INR 6 to INR 7 trillion. Against this, aﬀordable
HFCs have barely scratched the surface. While
government policies such as the PMAY have been
trying to drive the demand side of this ecosystem, the
supply side needs more support to improve
availability of aﬀordable homes. The assistance
required is both structural and operational. Some
critical elements of such support would be:
Making land available at the right distance from
work-areas for aﬀordable housing complexes;
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Providing connectivity services between the
housing locations and the business districts;
Rationalisation of construction cost through
modern technology and advanced building
techniques;
Making borrowing available at a reasonable price
to developers and end users;
Ensuring that the beneﬁts reach the actual end
user and not investors;
Despite perceived risks, HFCs have shown an active
interest in the aﬀordable housing segment. A
substantial section of customers in this segment are
micro & small enterprise owners, who face
occasional cash-ﬂow volatility in their businesses.
HFCs have come out with various innovative ways of
engaging with these customers in the evaluation of
their commercial activities and cash ﬂows.
Increased diligence in the assessment of risk in this
portfolio is a critical requirement, and the industry
over the last 6 to 8 years has signiﬁcantly evolved in
such credit assessments.
The Regulator, National Housing Bank has been
working to encourage active participation of HFCs in
the aﬀordable housing segment, by easing
reﬁnance norms. However, other avenues for lowcost funds need to be made available to HFCs to
penetrate this market further. There is a challenge of
higher operational expenditure as aﬀordable land
banks are open only on the peripherals and outskirts
of urban conglomerations. Connectivity through
public transport is not always available and
therefore, to build and manage lending portfolios
that are spread out in given geographies remains a
challenge from an operational cost perspective.
Lengthy commutes and the need for a skilled
workforce at all locations poses a big hurdle to
aﬀordable housing ﬁnance companies on a day to
day basis. These issues make scaling operations
adequately for gaining the beneﬁts of economies of
scale a challenge.
On the quality of aﬀordable housing properties,
given the need to keep the construction costs low,
these properties would come with essential
requirements and will typically preclude additional
comfort elements and features. Prudent developers
and individuals who self-construct on the lands
available with them, keep the quality of construction
intact but construct the houses only with basic
necessities. This, along with distant location of the
properties result in slower value appreciation in
many aﬀordable housing projects, in comparison to
properties in the city.

Despite the challenges in this sector, the aﬀordable
housing ﬁnance industry has made signiﬁcant
progress through innovative product oﬀerings,
incorporation of technology in process ﬂow and
robust collection mechanisms. In the years to come,
this segment is sure to see signiﬁcant growth and
deeper engagement between all players in the
ecosystem.
4. Vastu Business Overview
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Ltd ('Company') is
an HFC under the regulatory jurisdiction of the
National Housing Bank (NHB) in India. The Company
changed ownership and control in August 2015
(approved by the NHB on July 31, 2015).
At the end of FY 2018-19, Vastu was operational in 10
States with 44 Branches and 528 employees.
The core business of the Company is providing home
loans and home equity loans to customers in the
aﬀordable housing segment.
A signiﬁcant proportion of this customer base is selfemployed, including proprietors of small and micro
enterprises. Another segment of customers come
from the Class IV salaried segments of the organised
sectors. Most of these individuals have little to no
access to credit from channels in spite of having stable
businesses with steady cash ﬂows due to lack of
adequate formal income documents. Noninstitutional sources typically do not meet their
funding requirements or charge them very high rates
of interest.
The Company aims to bridge this gap by providing
ﬁnancial services at the doorstep to these customers.
The customers are predominantly located in semiurban and rural areas across peripheral tier I, tier
II/III/IV cities.
In its core business, the Company follows a geography
by geography contiguous lending model. The
Company identiﬁes locations for operations on the
basis of intensive primary and secondary research.
The Company recognizes this as a prerequisite to
rationalize costs and to use available resources most
eﬀectively to maximize business opportunities
available. Typically, the home loans oﬀered are for
periods upwards of 10 years, with loan tenures at the
time of origination going up to a maximum of 20
years.
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The Company has taken adequate care in
identifying its borrowers, ensuring that the
connectivity of the property for the borrower
remains comfortable. Accordingly, most borrowers
of the Company either have workplaces near their
intended residence or the workplace is reasonably
well connected by public transport to their
intended home.
The Company leverages its expertise in current and
emerging technologies, in particular, the digital and
mobile technology to reach out to its customers
and make the entire process of loan origination
nearly paperless till the stage of granting ﬁnal
approval. The Company has strategic partnerships
with chosen credit bureaus, legal ﬁrms, process
control organisations as well as KYC veriﬁcation
ﬁrms to establish the credibility of the customers,
consistent with its mission, client-focus, and
commercial viability.
5. Financial Overview
For FY 2018-19, the Company's total standalone
revenue and proﬁt after taxes were INR 188 Crores
and INR 38 Crores respectively. As of March 2019,
the Company had more than 11,799 borrowers
spread over 10 states.
The Company has a gross loan portfolio of INR
1,336 Crores as on March 31, 2019.
The Company has also received a rating upgrade
from CRISIL A-/Stable to 'CRISIL A/Stable' by CRISIL.
Details of the Company's rating is summarized
below:

Rating/Outlook
Nature of
Borrowing

CRISIL
Ratings

Bank Loan
Facility

CRISIL
A-/
Stable

IND
A/Stable

BWR
A/Stable

-

NonConvertible
Debentures

CRISIL
A-/
Stable

-

BWR
A/Stable

-

Long Term
Bank Lines

-

-

-

India
Ratings

Brickwork
Ratings

ICRA

[ICRA]
A/
Stable

6.Risk Management
(a) Operational Risk
Given the high-volume nature of operations, the
Company has put in place a sound monitoring
framework to manage the operational risks in the
business. There is an independent operations
department that controls the entire back-end
operations. This unit operates with a central team

that is based out of the Head Oﬃce and with various
teams located across the branches. The principal
purpose of this unit is to ensure that company policies
and statutory compliances with regards to
documentation and approvals are being adhered to
prior to disbursement of any loan.
The Company has made signiﬁcant advancement in
the application of technology to lending processes.
The entire process of lending has been made
paperless right from sourcing till disbursement.
Physical formats are maintained only for statutory
requirements. Digitized paperwork has increased
process eﬃciencies in the system and has also betterrationalized storage and operational expenses. To
mitigate technology risk, your Company has
constituted an internal IT Data Security Committee,
which reviews various risks such as data theft, data
leakage, and cyber security attacks. The Committee is
also responsible for recommending the adoption of
necessary security protocols and possible policy
amendments to strengthen the cyber security
preparedness of the Company.
To ensure consistent availability and delivery of its
products and services, your Company has developed a
comprehensive business continuity and disaster
recovery policy. The purpose of the policy is to ensure
that IT business operations are at normal or near
normal performance following an incident that has the
potential to disrupt the Company's operations.
(b) Credit Risk and Portfolio Monitoring
The Company has implemented a comprehensive risk
management policy that augments and governs the
underwriting methodologies. It deﬁnes acceptable
credit norms and legal competences which form the
core of its credit risk management framework. Prudent
credit risk management processes have helped the
Company build and manage portfolio quality. The
Company has developed robust templates and
methods to review portfolio data across diﬀerent
portfolio segments and appropriately draw
conclusions that could help in directing credit policies.
The Company periodically prepares reports for
detailed portfolio reviews across geographies,
customer constitution, and product parameters. These
reports and reviews help in recognizing events that
may aﬀect portfolio performance, identify potential
causes and propose appropriate recommendations to
curtail potential risks. Continuous portfolio
assessments using analytics help in identifying early
warning indicators to initiate follow-up on bounces in
a timely manner.
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The Company has implemented adequate systems
for internal control across all functions in the
organization, which provides a considerable
amount of assurance on the consistency of ﬁnancial
and operational information, contract execution
and compliance with internal and regulatory
policies.
(c) Liquidity Risk
Post default by IL&FS and purchase of DHFL's shortterm paper at an elevated yield, there was a
signiﬁcant loss in conﬁdence in the NBFC/HFC
space. Liquidity in the sector dried up signiﬁcantly
with many companies stopping disbursements in
order to manage liquidity. The Company sailed
through the period reasonably unscathed due to its
prudent liquidity management practices.
All borrowings of the Company are long term in
nature with suﬃcient liquidity lines in place. The
Company, at any point of time in the last ﬁnancial
year, was ready to meet its liabilities and expenses
for the next six months through its internal accruals
itself. The Company also opened a rights issue to
the tune of INR 400 Crores during the ﬁnancial year
with INR 344 Crores of application monies being
received by March 2019.
7. Resource Mobilization
The Company closed the ﬁnancial year with INR 990
Crores of debt on its balance sheet. It has a
diversiﬁed lender mix with participation from
Banks, NBFCs, HFCs, Mutual Fund and NHB. The
Company during the Financial Year raised INR 600
Crores of debt and has also received a fresh
reﬁnance sanction of INR 30 Crores from NHB. The
investor wise borrowing mix of the Company as on
FY 19 is as below:

8.Technology
The Company has made signiﬁcant progress over the
last couple of years by increasingly investing in
systems, processes, and people. The premise of these
investments has been to improve operational
eﬃciency, digitize the complete customer journey and
continuously work on reducing costs. The
comprehensive technology stack at Vastu has been
designed by an in-house team, to keep up with the
dynamic needs of the market.
The Company's digitized workﬂow is expansive and
caters to both front and back-oﬃce functions. It
includes loan origination, customer relationship
management, instant on-ﬁeld decisioning, loan
management, treasury operations, paperless
processing, accounting, ﬁnancial reporting, and realtime analytical dashboards. The Company has also
built mobility solutions for loan sourcing, credit
assessment, collections management, and for
managing distribution channels. The Company is
exploring possibilities of integrating with those
specialized in credit analytics augmented by artiﬁcial
intelligence and machine learning to bring about
meaningful insights to understand the credit behaviors
of prospective and existing customers.
The technology strategy of your Company is to
continuously stay ahead of the curve to maximize
customer proposition, eﬀectively manage risk and
ensure operational excellence.

Borrowings as on March 2019
22%
40%

33%
MF

5%
NHB

Banks

NBFC/HFC
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Branches

DELHI-NCR

UTTARAKHAND

Branches

Branches

RAJASTHAN

UTTAR PRADESH

01

01

07

01

Uttarakhand
Delhi
NCR

Branches

Branches

Rajasthan

GUJARAT

Uttar Pradesh

08

Branches
Gujarat

Madhya Pradesh

MADHYA PRADESH

07

TELANGANA

02

Maharashtra

Branches

Branches
Telangana

MAHARASHTRA

04

ANDHRA PRADESH
Karnataka

07

Andhra Pradesh

Branches

KARNATAKA

Branches

TAMILNADU

Tamil Nadu

03

03

Branches

Branches

TOTAL BRANCHES

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

44
Page 19

BOARD'S
REPORT

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 20

Dear Members,
Your Directors are pleased to present the Fifteenth Annual Report on the business and operational
performance of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and
Consolidated) and the Report of the Auditors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2019.

1.

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
Financial Performance:
The ﬁnancial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 is as summarized below:
(Amount in INR lakhs)
Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated

2018-19

2017-18

2018-19

2017-18

16 ,662.40

7,378.51

16 ,662.40

-

Other Income

2,106.13

2,121.85

2,111.55

-

Total Revenue

18 ,768.53

9,500.36

18 ,773.95

-

Proﬁt before Finance Costs,
Depreciation and Taxation

12 ,678.96

4,864.82

12 ,679.93

-

7,009.88

2,054.63

7,009.89

-

44.07

59.89

44.74

-

Proﬁt Before Tax

5,625.01

2,750.30

5,625.30

-

Less: Tax expense

1,859.68

789.29

1,859.30

-

Proﬁt After Tax

3,765.33

1,961.01

3,765.47

-

Revenue from Operations

Less: Finance Costs
Less: Depreciation and amortization
expenses

2.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS:
Particulars

Standalone

Consolidated
2017-18

2018-19

2017-18

2018-19

44

37

44

-

Number of borrowers

6,315

3195

6,315

-

Number of employees

528

461

528

-

Amount sanctioned (INR in Lakhs)

78,187.62

66,130.70

78,187.62

-

Amount disbursed (INR in Lakhs)

76,096.13

63,273.66

76,096.13

-

1,33,601.30

74,394.43

1,33,601.30

Number of branches

Amount outstanding (INR in Lakhs)
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3.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:
(a) Income
Your Company's Standalone revenue from
operations for the current year was INR 16,662.40
Lakhs as compared to INR 7,378.51 Lakhs in the
previous year.
(b) Proﬁt Before Tax
Your Company's Standalone Proﬁt before tax for
the current year was INR 5,625.01 Lakhs as against
INR 2,750.30 Lakhs in the previous year.
(c) Proﬁt After Tax
Your Company's Standalone Proﬁt after tax for
the current year was INR 3,765.33 Lakhs as against
INR 1,961.01 Lakhs in the previous year.
From future business prospect and for smooth
ﬂow of business, the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on April 26, 2019, also approved to
increase its current Borrowing limits from INR
2,000 Crores to INR 2,500 Crores.
Please refer Management Discussion and
Analysis Report for more information on the
Company's Business Overview.

4.

5.

6.

7.

DIVIDEND:
With a view to conserve resources, your Directors
do not recommend any dividend for the year under
review.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the ﬁnancial year under review, your
Company has transferred INR 1,125 Lakhs to the
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of National
Housing Bank (NHB) Act, 1987 out of the amount
available for appropriation.
REVISION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
There was no revision of Financial Statements
during the year under review.
RESOURCE MOBILISATION:
(a) Term Loans
As on March 31, 2019, the Company's outstanding
Term Loans stood at INR 57,097.92 Lakhs vis-à-vis
INR 35,028.09 Lakhs as on March 31, 2018. The
Company's Bank Borrowings enjoys a rating of “A”
Stable.
(b)Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued on
private placement basis
During the ﬁnancial year under review, your
Company has issued 3,000 Secured, Senior, Rated,
Redeemable, Taxable, Transferable, Listed NonConvertible Debentures on a private placement
basis having face value of INR 10,00,000 /- (Indian
Rupees Ten Lakh only) each aggregating to

INR 3,00,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Three Hundred
Crores Only) and which were subsequently listed with
BSE Limited.
Debenture Trustee Agreement was executed in favour
of Milestone Trusteeship Services Private Limited
having its registered oﬃce at CoWrks Worli, PS56, 3rd
Floor, Birla Centurion, Century Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai – 400 030
(Tel: 022-62886119 / 022-62886120) on October 4,
2018.
During the year under review, there were no NonConvertible Debentures which were claimed by the
Investors or not paid by the Company after the date on
which the Non-Convertible Debentures became due
for redemption. Also, there was no amount in respect
of the debentures remaining unclaimed or unpaid
beyond the due date for redemption.
(c) Reﬁnance from National Housing Bank (NHB)
During the ﬁnancial year under review, your Company
has been granted a reﬁnance sanction amounting to
INR 30,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Thirty Crores Only)
by National Housing Bank ('NHB') under the NHB's
reﬁnancing schemes for Housing Finance Companies.
(d) Credit Rating
During the ﬁnancial year under review, Credit Ratings
assigned to the Company are as under:

Rating/Outlook
Nature of
Borrowing

CRISIL
Ratings

Bank Loan
Facility

CRISIL
A-/
Stable

NonConvertible
Debentures

CRISIL
A-/
Stable

Long Term
Bank Lines

India Ratings Brickwork
& Research Ratings
IND
A/Stable

ICRA

BWR
A/Stable
BWR
A/Stable
[ICRA]
A/
Stable

On April 24, 2019, the Rating for Bank Loan Facility and
Non-Convertible Debentures was upgraded from CRISIL
A-/Stable to 'CRISIL A/ Stable' by CRISIL Ratings.
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Key Rating Commentaries from Rating Agencies:
CRISIL:
The upgrade reﬂects strengthening of Vastu
Housing's ﬁnancial risk proﬁle, backed by
improvement in capitalisation and proﬁtability,
continued stability in asset quality (which remains
best amongst peers), fairly diversiﬁed resource
proﬁle, and comfortable liquidity position with NIL
dependence on short term borrowings.
The ratings continue to factor in Vastu Housing's
strong risk management systems and processes,
and the extensive experience of the management in
the retail ﬁnance space.
ICRA:
Experienced management team and strong
commitment of shareholders – Vastu was founded
by Mr. Sandeep Menon, Mr. Sujay Patil with Mr. PH.
Ravikumar being a founder director. Multiples
Alternate Asset Management, through the funds
advised by it holds 85.74% stake in the company and
is committed to further equity infusions required for
incremental growth. In addition to Multiples, the
Company was seeded by Mr. Pramod Bhasin, Mr.
Samir Bhatia and Mr. Vikram Gandhi. The company
beneﬁts from the long-standing experience of the
shareholders in the retail ﬁnance business across
various retail asset classes. Moreover, Vastu has a
strong and experienced senior management team.
With the oversight of the Board and the
management, ICRA expects the company to grow its
portfolio prudently.
8. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There was no change in the nature of business of
the Company.
9.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS,
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN
THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR & THE DATE
OF REPORT:
There are no material changes and commitments,
aﬀecting the ﬁnancial position of your Company,
which have occurred between the end of the
ﬁnancial year of the Company, i.e. March 31, 2019
and the date of this Board's Report i.e. April 26, 2019

10. SHARE CAPITAL:
During the ﬁnancial year under review, pursuant to
the approval of the Members of the Company, the
Authorized Share Capital of the Company was
increased from INR 600,00,00,000/ - (Indian Rupees
Six Hundred Crores Only) to INR 1,000,00,00,000/(Indian Rupees One Thousand Crores Only) on
August 21, 2018.

Share Capital structure of the Company as on March 31,
2019 is as follows:
Authorised Capital:
10,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of INR 100/- each

(Amount in INR in Lakhs)
1,00,000.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up Share Capital:
35,382,180 Equity
Shares of INR 100/- each

35,382.18

During the ﬁnancial year under review, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on February
12, 2019 approved issuance of 1,73,91,305 Rights issue
equity shares of INR 100/- each at an exercise price of INR
230/- each and the same was oﬀered to the existing
shareholders vide oﬀer letters dated March 14, 2019.
The Company has neither issued sweat equity shares nor
equity shares with diﬀerential rights as on March 31, 2019.
None of the Directors of the Company hold convertible
instruments of the Company.
The Board of Directors, pursuant to the approval of the
Members of the Company, had approved 20,00,000 and
5,00,000 Employee Stock Option Plan ('ESOP”) on July 21,
2017 and August 08, 2018, respectively. Presently 23,03,900
Stock Options at PAR have been granted to certain eligible
Directors, KMPs and Employees of the Company. Stock
options granted operates under 4 (four) schemes namely;
Core Management Employee Stock Option Plan - 2018
Scheme 1, Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 – Scheme 1,
Core Management Employee Stock Option Plan - 2018
Scheme 2 and Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 – Scheme
2.
During the year under review, none of the options granted
as aforesaid have vested during the year and consequently,
no options have been exercised.
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):
As on March 31, 2019 your Company's total CAR, calculated
in line with NHB regulations, stood at 83.24 per cent well
above the regulatory minimum of 12.00 per cent. Of this,
Tier I CAR was 82.25 per cent.
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11. DETAILS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE
AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:
Pursuant to Section 2(87) of the Companies Act,
2013, Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
('Finserve') is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the
Company which was incorporated on September
28, 2018 and had applied for Non-Banking Financial
Company ('NBFC') license to Reserve Bank of India
('RBI'). Finserve has received its NBFC license on
April 22, 2019. The Wholly Owned Subsidiary is yet
to Commence its operations as on the date of this
report. Reporting on the highlights of performance
of Subsidiaries their contribution to the overall
performance of the Company during the period
under report, is provided in Form AOC-1 (Statement
containing the salient features of the ﬁnancial
statements of subsidiaries / associate
companies/joint ventures) annexed herewith as
'Annexure I'.
The Company did not have any Joint Venture or
Associate Company and there were no companies
which became or ceased to be the Company's
Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company;
accordingly, reporting on the highlights of
performance of Associates and Joint Venture
companies and their contribution to the overall
performance of the Company during the period
under report is not required to be made.
12. CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL:
(a) Directors
At present your Company has Eight (8) Directors
consisting of Three (3) Independent Directors, Four
(4) Non Executive Directors including a Woman
Director and One (1) Executive Director.
Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna (DIN: 06597041) was
appointed as an Additional Director in the
Independent capacity on the Board of the
Company, subject to members’ approval at ensuing
Annual General Meeting ('AGM'), with eﬀect from
February 12, 2019 to hold oﬃce upto the date of
ensuing AGM or the last date on which the AGM
should have been held, whichever is earlier. His
appointment as an Independent Director upto
March 31, 2024 would be subject to members’
approval at ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Accordingly, the Board has obtained his consent to
be appointed as a Director of the Company at the
ensuing AGM and necessary resolution for his
appointment as Directors is provided in the Notice
of the ensuing AGM of the Company.

Based on the conﬁrmations received from all the
Directors of the Company, none of the Directors are
disqualiﬁed for appointment under Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
None of the Directors have resigned from the
Company during the year under review.
(b) Key Managerial Personnel
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sandeep Menon, Managing
Director, Mr. Sujay Patil, Chief Financial Oﬃcer and Ms.
Pallavi Bhambere, Company Secretary are the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on the date
of this Report.
13. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY THE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
As required under Section 149(7) of the Companies
Act, 2013, declarations were received from Mr. Vijay
Kumar, Mr. G. S. Nayak and Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna
Independent Directors of the Company conﬁrming
that they meet the criteria of independence as
speciﬁed in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
14. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
formulated criteria for determining qualiﬁcations,
positive attributes and independence of a director.
The Company has put in place appropriate policy on
Directors' appointment and remuneration and other
matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013, which has been uploaded on the Company's
website at https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/policies.
Further, salient features of the Company's Policy on
Directors' Remuneration have been disclosed in the
'Annexure III', which forms part of this Report.
15. REGULATORY AND STATUTORY COMPLIANCES:
During the ﬁnancial year under review, the National
Housing Bank ('NHB') has issued various Notiﬁcations,
Circulars and Guidelines to the Housing Finance
Companies.
The Circulars and the Notiﬁcations issued by NHB were
also placed before the Board of Directors at regular
intervals to update the Board members on compliance
of the same and your Company has adhered to all the
Circulars, Notiﬁcations and Guidelines issued by NHB
from time to time. Your Company is also in compliance
with the provisions of the Act including the Secretarial
Standards, SEBI (LODR) Regulations and other
applicable statutory requirements.
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16. DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted any deposits under
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014
during the year ended March 31, 2019.
17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
A N D FO R E I G N E XC H A N G E E A R N I N G S &
OUTGOING:
As required under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company
lays great emphasis on saving the cost of energy
consumption. Therefore, eﬀective measures have
been taken to check the loss of energy, as far as
possible.
Technology Absorption is not applicable to the

Company as the Company is carrying on the business
of providing long term housing ﬁnance and term loans
for non-housing purposes.
During the ﬁnancial year under review, the Foreign
Exchange Earnings and out-go were as under:
(i)Foreign Exchange earnings– Nil
(ii)Foreign Exchange spent– Nil
18. DISCLOSURE AS TO REMUNERATION:
The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the
median remuneration of employees and other details
in terms of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 as amended by the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Amendment Rules, 2018, forms part of this report
which is as follows:
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Requirements

Disclosure

The ratio of the remuneration of each director
to the median remuneration of the employees
for the ﬁnancial year 2018-19

Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Menon – Managing Director - 54.55x

The percentage increase in remuneration of
each Director, Chief Financial Oﬃcer, Chief
Executive Oﬃcer and Company Secretary in the
ﬁnancial year 2018-19.

Executive Director
Mr. Sandeep Menon – Managing Director - 19.62%

Non-Executive Directors
M s. Renuka Ramnath – Nil
Mr. Sudhir Variyar – Nil
Mr. Samir Bhatia – Nil
Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar - Nil
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak - Nil
Mr. Vijay Kumar – Nil
Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna - Nil

Non-Executive Directors
M s. Renuka Ramnath – Nil
Mr. Sudhir Variyar – Nil
Mr. Samir Bhatia – Nil
Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar - Nil
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak - Nil
Mr. Vijay Kumar – Nil
Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna - Nil
Key Managerial Personnel other than Directors
Mr. Sujay Patil – Chief Financial Oﬃcer – 12.40 %
Ms. Pallavi Bhambere – Company Secretary – 33.66 %

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the ﬁnancial year
2018-19

17.5%

Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last ﬁnancial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justiﬁcation
thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration.

The median percentage increase made in the salaries of
employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel was 17.5%
while the median increase in the salaries of Key Managerial
Personnel was 16.01%. The increase in the remuneration is in
line with the Company's Performance appraisal policy.

The number of permanent employees on the
rolls of the Company.

528 (as on March 31, 2019)

Aﬃrmation that the remuneration is as per the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company

It is hereby aﬃrmed that the remuneration is as per the
Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.
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The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
forms part of this report. However, as per ﬁrst proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and second
proviso of Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
the Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the said statement.
Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the said statement may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registered Oﬃce of the Company.

19. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
The Managing Director of the Company does not receive any remuneration or commission from the Holding and
Subsidiary Company and accordingly, provision of Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
to the Company.
20. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 for the
ﬁnancial year ended March 31, 2019 is annexed herewith as 'Annexure II'.
The Annual Return is available on the website of the Company at https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/annual-report.
21. BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS:
4 (Four) Board Meetings were held during the ﬁnancial year 2018-19. The Company held a minimum of one board
meeting in every quarter with a gap not exceeding 120 days (Maximum period permitted) between two consecutive
board meetings. The details of which are given as under:

Board Meeting date

Sr. No.

Number of days from previous Board

Quarter

Meeting

1

April 27, 2018

April-June

64

2

August 08, 2018

July-September

102

3

October 30, 2018

October-December

82

4

February 12, 2019

January-March

104

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and General Meetings:
Attendance

Sr. No.

Name of Director

Board Meetings
held in Director’s
tenure

Board Meeting

Annual General
Meeting held
on May 16, 2018

Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on
August 21, 2018

Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on
December 17, 2018
No

1

Ms. Renuka Ramnath

4

2

No

No

2

Mr. P. H. Ravikumar

4

3

Yes

Yes

No

3

Mr. Sandeep Menon

4

4

Yes

Yes

Yes

4

Mr. G S Nayak

4

4

No

No

No

5

Mr. Sudhir Variyar

4

4

No

No

No

No

Yes

No

No

No

No

(1 meeting 3 attended
6

Mr. Samir Bhatia

4

7

Mr. Vijay Kumar

4

through telecon)
4
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22. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
As on March 31, 2019, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised the following members:
(a) Mr. Vijay Kumar – Non-Executive Independent Director
(b) Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak – Non-Executive Independent Director
(c) Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar – Non-Executive Nominee Director
Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna was inducted in the Audit Committee and designated as a Chairman w.e.f April 26, 2019.
The Audit Committee of the Company held 4 (Four) meetings during the ﬁnancial year 2018-19 on April 27, 2018,
August 08, 2018, October 30, 2018 and February 12, 2019 respectively. All the recommendations made by the
Audit Committee to the Board during the year were accepted by the Board of Directors. Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva
Ravikumar, member of Audit Committee attended the Annual General Meeting held on May 16, 2018 as
authorised by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Attendance of Directors at Audit Committee Meetings
Sr. No.

Name of Director

1
2
3

Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar
Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak
Mr. Vijay Kumar

Audit Committee Meetings
held in Member’s tenure
4
4
4

Attendance
3
4
4

23. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company held 4 (Four) meetings during the ﬁnancial year
2018-19 on April 27, 2018, August 08, 2018, October 30, 2018 and February 12, 2019 respectively. All the
recommendations made by the Committee to the Board during the year were accepted by the Board of Directors.

Attendance of Directors at Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings

Sr. No.

Name of Member

1

Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar

2
3
4

Mr. Girija Shankar Nayak
Mr. Sudhir Variyar
Mr. Vijay Kumar

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee
Meetings held in Member ’s
tenure
4
4
4
4

Attendance

3
4
4
4

24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
There are no material signiﬁcant related party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters or Directors,
etc. which may have potential conﬂict with the interest of the Company at large. Transactions entered into with
Related Parties during the year under review as provided in the Notes to Financial Statements does not attract the
provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Policy on Related Party Transactions is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/policies.
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25. DETAILS OF TRANSACTIONS OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS WITH THE COMPANY:
During the year under review, sitting fees have been
paid to Mr. Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar and Mr.
Girija Shankar Nayak for the Board and Committee
Meetings attended by them. Details of the sitting
fees have been provided in the Extract of annual
return.
Remaining Non-Executive Directors does not
receive any sitting fees from the Company.
26. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS AND
GUARANTEES UNDER SECTION 186:
As the Company is a Housing Finance Company, the
disclosures regarding particulars of the loans made,
guarantee given and security provided is exempt
under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the
Companies Act, 2013. As such the particulars of
loans and guarantee have not been provided in this
report.
As regards investments made by the Company, the
details of the same are provided under Notes No.
12 forming part of the Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2019.
27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made
there under, the Company has adopted a CSR Policy
and has constituted a CSR Committee.
The Company’s CSR Policy is available on the
website of the Company at

https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/policies.
Further, Annual Report on CSR Activities has been
disclosed as 'Annexure IV', which forms part of
this Report.
After the closure of ﬁnancial year and on the date of
this report, the Board of Directors of the Company
at their meeting held on April 26, 2019 approved
CSR expenditure of an amount of INR 5.00 Lakhs to
be spent through 'Rotary Club of Mumbai North
End' in the ﬁeld of Health Care.
28. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR
ADEQUACY:
The Company has proper and adequate system of
internal controls to ensure that all its assets are
safeguarded. Standardized operating procedures,
policies and guidelines, including regular
monitoring procedures and self-assessment
exercises are the cornerstones of this important
function.

The Company has set up various executive-level
committees, having participation from various
control functions that are designed to review and
oversee matters pertaining to risks, assets and
liabilities, business practices and customer service,
operational risk, information security and internal
risk-based supervision amongst others. The control
functions set standards and lay down policies and
procedures by which the business functions manage
risks including compliance with applicable laws,
compliance with regulatory guidelines, adherence to
operational controls.
The Company has a comprehensive Know Your
Customer and Anti Money Laundering (KYC & AML)
policy (based on the NHB guidelines and provisions
of the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002)
incorporating the key elements of Customer
Acceptance Policy, Customer Identiﬁcation
Procedures, Risk Management and Monitoring of
Transactions. The policy is subjected an annual review
and is duly approved by the Board.
The eﬀectiveness of the internal control systems is
continuously monitored by the Internal Auditors and
Internal Audit Department of the Company. The main
function of the Internal Auditors is to provide to the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, an
objective assurance of the adequacy and
eﬀectiveness of the organization's risk management
control and governance process.
29. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION
AND PROTECTION FUND:
There are no amounts due and outstanding to be
credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as
on March 31, 2019.
30. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
The Company has in place adequate ﬁnancial controls
and these ﬁnancial controls are operating eﬀectively.
31. STATUTORY AUDITORS:
At the Annual General Meeting held on June 15, 2016,
M/s. T. R. Chadha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(Firm Registration No. 006711N/N500028), were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to
hold oﬃce for a period of 5 consecutive years i.e. till
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the
year ending on March 31, 2021.
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The Auditors Report to the members for the year under
review does not contain any qualiﬁcation and
accordingly, explanations or comments by the Board are
not required to be provided.
Also, no frauds were reported by the Auditors in their
report on the Financial Statements of the Company
under Section143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

32. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK:
As a Housing Finance Company, the Company
is exposed to various risks like credit risk,
market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk
(technology, employee and transaction risk). To
identify and mitigate these risks, the Company
has an eﬀective Risk Management Control
Fr a m e w o r k t h a t h a s b e e n d e v e l o p e d
encompassing all the above areas. The Board
has constituted a Risk Management
Committee (RMC) that comprises its directors
and members of senior management team of
the Company. The RMC meets at regular
intervals and keep an active watch on the
emergent risks the Company is exposed to. The
Board of the Company has adopted the Risk
Management Policy based on the
recommendation by the Risk Management
Committee in order to assess, monitor and
manage risk throughout the Company.
(a) Credit Risk:
In order to manage credit risk inherent in
lending business, your company has clearly
deﬁned product policies, underwriting norms,
customer and collateral review processes and
systems that govern the various credit controls
required for the business. Your company has a
credit team that is well-experienced in
diﬀerent nuances of credit. The senior
management team has fostered a culture of
credit awareness through a robust credit risk
management framework, through various
interventions such as policy and process
controls, data analytics, regular portfolio
reviews and training programs for the staﬀ
across functions. It is this emphasis on credit
awareness that has helped the Company keep
its NPA levels under control. The Company has
a well laid out technology support platform to
manage the underwriting process in a
seamless manner that enables comprehensive
evaluation of the customer and capture of
data. It is well recognized that a strong credit
risk

management process is absolutely necessary and
the company drives the work on this aspect of risk
management with utmost rigour and discipline.
(b) Market Risk:
Your company has a well-deﬁned Board
approved Investment Policy, that governs the
Company's approach to statutory reserve
management, trading activity in interest rates,
equity and currencies market and investment
strategy. This policy document has well-deﬁned
triggers and limits for managing the diﬀerent
risks associated with trading activity and
securities.
(c) Liquidity Risk:
The risks associated with Asset-Liability
mismatch and / or interest rate ﬂuctuations are
governed by the Company's Asset Liability
Management Policy. This Policy is implemented,
monitored and periodically reviewed by the Asset
Liability Committee. As a part of this process, the
Company has established various Board
approved limits to mitigate both liquidity and
interest risks.
(d) Information Technology Risk:
Your Company operates in an automated environment
and makes use of the latest technologies to support
various operations. This technology platform
eﬃciently supports management of risks related to
information assets, data security, integrity, reliability
and availability amongst others. The Company has put
in place information security practices and business
continuity plan to mitigate information technology
related risks. An independent internal team within
Internal Audit provides assurance on the management
of information technology related risks. The Company
has a robust Business Continuity plan that is
periodically tested to ensure that it can meet any
operational contingencies. There is an independent
Information Data Security Committee that addresses
information security related risks. A Board approved
information security policy is put in place.
(e) Operational Risk:
Your Company has instituted adequate internal
control systems to monitor operational risk, and is also
periodically reviewed by the Risk Management
Committee. Since increasingly a large proportion of
the Company's operations are technologically driven,
the Company has ensured adequate back up of
company's data and has put in place a fail-over
infrastructure should the need arise.
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The Company also has a system of Grievance
Redressal Mechanism to ensure grievances are
resolved within time and leading to improved
customer service standards. The Company
encourages sound risk management culture within
the organization.
(f) Compliance Risk
Your company follows a “no-tolerance” policy on
compliance and regulatory issues. Compliance
related risks are closely monitored by a dedicated
team of subject matter experts in the Compliance
Department, which works closely with business and
operations teams to ensure active compliance risk
management and monitoring. The internal policies
are deﬁned in a manner that take into
consideration, the necessary mitigants required to
manage compliance risks. All internal policies are
reviewed and updated periodically as per agreed
frequency or based on market action or regulatory
guidelines / action. The compliance team also seeks
regular feedback on regulatory compliance from
product, business and operation teams through
self-certiﬁcations and monitoring.
33. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (VIGIL MECHANISM)
In Compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules
made there under, the Company has adopted a
Whistle Blower Policy and has established the
necessary vigil mechanism for employees to report
genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's
code of conduct or ethics policy. The Policy also
provides for adequate safeguard against
victimization of Whistle Blower who avails of such
mechanism and also provides for the access to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. None of the
Whistle Blowers have been denied access to the
Audit Committee. Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded
on website of the Company at URL
https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/policies.
34.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:
The Board at its meeting held on April 26, 2019
carried out the annual evaluation of its own
performance as well as the evaluation of the
working of its Committees and individual Directors,
including Chairperson of the Board for the Financial
Year 2018-19 and expressed its satisfaction as to
their performance. This exercise was carried out
through a structured questionnaire prepared

separately for Board, Committees and individual
Directors. The questionnaire for Board evaluation was
prepared taking into consideration various aspects of
the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the
composition and role of the Board, Board meeting and
reporting process, eﬀectiveness of strategies, risk
management systems, external relationships, ethics
and governance framework. Committee performance
were evaluated on the basis of its composition,
eﬀectiveness in carrying out its mandate, relevance of
its recommendations and allocation of adequate time
to fulﬁl its mandate.
35. D IRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(5) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013;
the Directors state to the best of their knowledge and
belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them:
(a) That in the preparation of the annual accounts the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there were no material departures;
(b) That appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently, and have made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of aﬀairs of the Company as at March 31,
2019 and of the proﬁt of the Company for that
period;
(c) That proper and suﬃcient care has been taken
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;
(d) That the annual accounts have been prepared
on a 'going concern' basis; and
(e) That proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws were in
place and were adequate and operating eﬀectively.
(f) That internal ﬁnancial controls to be followed
by the company have been laid down and that
such internal ﬁnancial controls are adequate and
operating eﬀectively.
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36. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL
ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS
O R T R I B U N A L S I M PAC T I N G T H E G O I N G
CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY'S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:
During the year under review, there have not been
any signiﬁcant and material orders passed by the
Regulators/Courts/Tribunals which will impact the
going concern status and operations of the
Company in future.
37. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2019 issued by M/s. Pradeep Purwar &
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries in the
prescribed Form MR-3 does not contain any audit
observations and accordingly, explanations or
comments by the Board are not required to be
provided.
38. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
As per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,
details of the remuneration of Mr. Sandeep Menon
(DIN: 02032154), Managing Director of the
Company, are given hereunder:
(a) All elements of remuneration package such as
salary, beneﬁts, bonuses, stock options,
pension, etc., of all the directors;
INR 1,75,00,000/(b) Details of ﬁxed component and performance

39. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WO M E N AT WO R K P L AC E ( P R E V E N T I O N ,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has adopted a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of
sexual harassment and a formal process for dealing
with complaints of harassment and / or discrimination
against women. The Company has constituted an
Internal Complaints Committee in this regard. The
Company seeks to ensure that all such complaints are
resolved within deﬁned timelines. During the ﬁnancial
year 2018-19, no complaints of sexual harassment have
been received by the Company.
40. COST RECORDS:
The Company is not required to make and maintain
cost records pursuant to Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013.
41. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:
Your directors place on record thanks to the regulator
National Housing Bank, stock exchange, the
Company's bankers, the Govt. Authorities, Clients of
the Company, Staﬀ Members of the Company for
extending valuable support to the Company.
Your Directors also gratefully acknowledge all
stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, dealers,
vendors and other business partners for the excellent
support received from them during the year. Your
involvement as shareholder is also greatly valued.

linked incentives along with the performance
criteria;
Fixed Component

: INR 1,75,00,000/-

One time Performance
linked Incentive for FY
2018-19

:INR 1,25,00,000/-

(c) Service contracts, notice period,
severance fees

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

- N.A.:
sd/-

(d) Stock option details, if any and whether the
same has been issued at a discount as well as
the period over which accrued and over which
exercisable: - 10,00,000 Stock Options have
been granted during the Financial Year 2018-19
and none of the options granted as aforesaid
have vested during the year and consequently,
no options have been exercised.

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director
DIN: 02032154

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
DIN: 00147182

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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ANNEXURE I TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
FORM AOC-1
as on the ﬁnancial year ended on March 31, 2019
Pursuant to ﬁrst proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 Statement containing the salient features of the ﬁnancial statements of subsidiaries
/ associate companies / joint ventures
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
Sr. No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16

Particulars
Name of the Subsidiary
Date since when Subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if diﬀerent
from the holding company’s reporting period
Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of
the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries.
Share capital (in INR)
Reserves & surplus (in INR)
Total assets (in INR)
Total liabilities (in INR)
Investments (in INR)
Turnover (in INR)
Proﬁt / (loss) before taxation (in
INR)
Provision for taxation (in INR)
Proﬁt / (loss) after taxation (in INR)
Proposed dividend (in INR)
Extent of shareholding (in percentage)
Contribution to the overall performance of the company
during the period under report

Vastu Finserve India Private
Limited
September 28, 2018
2,50,00,000
14,051
2,54,76,811
4,62,760
Nil
Nil
29,331
15,280
14,051
Nil
100%
The Company is yet to
commence its operations

(a) Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
(b) Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Nil
Part 'B': - Associates and Joint Ventures: Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures: Since the Company does not have any Associate or Joint
venture Company the disclosure under this section is not applicable.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019

sd/-

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
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ANNEXURE II TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the ﬁnancial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Form No. MGT-9
1.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
Particulars

Details

CIN

U65922MH2005PLC272501

Registration Date
Name of the Company
Category / Sub-Category of the Company
Address of the Registered Oﬃce and
contact details

04/02/2005
VASTU HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Company limited by shares/Indian Non-Government company
Unit Nos. 203 & 204, 2nd Floor, A wing, Navbharat Estates, Zakaria
Bunder Road, Sewri (West) Mumbai, Maharashtra ‒ 400 015
Phone: 022-02419 0911

Whether listed company
Name, address and contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Debt Listed Company
BigShare Services Private Limited
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana
Road, Marol, Andheri East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400 059
Contact Person: Mr. Babu Rapheal
Tel No: 022- 6263 8200; Fax No: 022- 6263 8299
Email: babu@bigshareonline.com
Website: www.bigshareonline.com

2. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: Sr.
No.
1

3.

Name and Description of main
Products / Services
Financial intermediation except
Insurance and Pension Funding

NIC Code of the Product/Service
64990

% to total turnover of the
Company
100.00

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Sr.
No.

Name and address of the Company

CIN / GLN

1

Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited
Address: 1st Floor, 78 Saint Jean Road,
Quatre-Bornes, Mauritius

NA

2

U65990MH2018PTC31
Address: Unit Nos. 203 & 204, 2nd Floor, 4935
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

Holding/
Subsidiary
/ Associate
Holding

Subsidiary

% of
shares
held

Applicable
Section

77.13

2(46)

100

2(87)

A wing, Navbharat Estates, Zakaria
Bunder Road, Sewri, Mumbai -400015
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4.
i.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category - wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year
Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% of
Total
Shares

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

a) Individual /
HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Central
Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) State
Govt.(s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Bodies
Corporate

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub -Total
(A)(1):

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

a) NRIs Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Other –
Individuals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Bodies
Corporate

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Any
Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub -Total
(A)(2):

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total
Shareholding
of Promoters
(A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

a) Mutual
Funds / UTI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c) Central
Govt.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

d) State
Govt.(s)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

Physical

% of
Change
during
the
year

Demat

Total

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

(2) Foreign

B. Public
Shareholding
(1)
Institutions
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No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year
Category of
Shareholders

e) Venture
Capital Funds
f) Insurance
Companies
g) FIIs
h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others
(specify)
Sub -Total
(B)(1):
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies
Corporate
i) Indian

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% of
Total
Shares

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total

Physical

% of
Change
during
the
year

Demat

Total

30,45,664

1,00,000

31,45,664

8.89

31,45,664

-

31,45,664

8.89

-

2,72,90,421

3,20,000

2,76,10,421

78,03

2,72,90,421

3,20,000

2,76,10,421

78.03

-

54,731

2,14,552

2,69,283

0.76

2, 61 , 283

-

2, 61 , 283

0.74

-0.02

11,47,219

21,46,291

32,93,510

9.31

33 ,01 , 510

-

33 ,01 , 510

8.60

- 0.71

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,01,770

9,61,532

10,63,302

3.01

10 ,63 , 302

-

10 ,63 , 302

3.01

-

iii) Trust
iv) OCB
v) Clearing
Members

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Sub-Total
(B)(2):

3,15,38,035 38,44,145

3,53,82,180

100

3,50,62,180

3,20,00

3,53,82,180

100

-

Total Public
Shareholding

3,15,38,035 38,44,145

3,53,82,180

100

3,50,62,180

-

3,53,82,180

100

-

ii) Overseas
b) Individual
i) Individual
Shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 1 Lakh
ii) Individual
Shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs. 1
Lakh
c) Other
(Specify )
i) Non Resident
(Non -Rep)
ii) Non Resident (Rep)
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No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year
Category of
Shareholders

Physical

Demat

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% of
Total
Shares

Total

Physical

Demat

% of
Change
during
the
year

% of
Total
Shares

Total

(B)= (B)(1)
+(B)(2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C)

ii.

-

-

3,15,38,035 38,44,145 3,53,82,180

-

-

100

3,50,62,180

-

-

-

-

3,20,000 3,53,82,180

100

-

Shareholding of Promoters–Not Applicable

Shareholders
Name

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year (01.04.2018)
No. of
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the
year (31.03.2019)

% of total
% of Shares
% of total
% of Shares
No. of
shares of the Pledged /encumbered Shares shares of the Pledged /encumbered
Company
Company
to total shares
to total shares

% of Change
in share holding
during the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding - Not Applicable
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

% of total
No. of Shares shares of
the Company
At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2018)

-

-

Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc):
At the end of the year (31.03.2019)

-

% of total shares of
the Company

No. of Shares

-
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iv. Shareholding Pa ern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):
Sr.
No.

Name

Shareholding

Date

Increase/Decrease
in shareholding

Cumula ve shareholding
Reason

during the year
01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019

No. of Shares at
the beginning
(01.4.2018)

end of the year

% of total
No. of
shares

shares of the
Company

% of total
shares of the
Company

(31.03.2019)

1 Plenty Private
Equity Fund I
Limited

2,72,90,421

77.13

01.04.2018
-

2,72,90,421

77.13

30,45,664

8.61

30,45,664

8.61

31.03.2019

16,03,065

4.53

01.04.2018
-

16,03,065

4.53

9,61,532

2.72

2.72

1,01,770

0.29

1,01,770

0.29

31.03.2019

2,00,000

0.57

01.04.2018
-

2,00,000

0.57

8 Sea Shell Limited

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

31.03.2019
-

7 Ms. Malavika Tiwari

-

01.04.2018
-

6 Mr. B.D. Narang

-

31.03.2019
-

5 Mr. Puranam
Srikanth

-

01.04.2018
-

9,61,532

-

31.03.2019
-

4 Mr. Vikram Gandhi

-

01.04.2018
-

3 Mr. Pramod Bhasin

-

31.03.2019
-

2 Mul ples
Private Equity
Fund II LLP

-

2,00,000

0.57

01.04.2018
-

-

0.57

31.03.2019

-

2,00,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,20,000

0.90

01.04.2018
-

3,20,000

0.90

31.03.2019
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v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sr.
No.

Name

Shareholding

Increase/Decrease

Date

in shareholding

Cumula ve shareholding
Reason

during the year
01.04.2018 to 31.03.2019

No. of Shares at
the beginning

% of total

(01.4.2018)

shares of the

end of the year

Company

% of total
shares of the
Company

No. of
shares

(31.03.2019)

A. Directors
54,731

1 Mr. P.H.
Ravikumar Non -Executive
Nominee
Director

0.15

01.04.2018

-

2 Mr. Sandeep
Menon Managing
Director

54,731

0.15

31.03.2019

1,43,226

0.40

01.04.2018

01.10.2018

3 Mr. Samir
Bhatia Director

1,51,226

0.43

31.03.2019

11,47,219

3.24

01.04.2018

11,47,219

3.24

31.03.2019

0.25

01.04.2018

-

-

-

-

8,000

Transfer from
Mr. Shakil Khan

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,51,226

B. Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr. Sujay PatilChief Financial
Oﬃcer

89,283

89,283

0.25

31.03.2019

Note:- Apart from abovementioned Directors / Key Managerial Personnel, remaining key Managerial Personnel does not hold
any shares of the Company during the year under review.
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vi. INDEBTEDNESS:
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:
(Amount in INR in lakhs)
Secured Loans

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

47,528.09

-

-

-

-

-

-

147.22

-

-

147.22

47,675.31

-

-

47,675.31

60,000.00

-

-

60,000.00

excluding
deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the ﬁnancial year
i. Principal Amount
ii. Interest due but not paid
iii. Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii+ iii)

47,528.09

Change in Indebtedness during the ﬁnancial year
Addition
Reduction

8,507.09

-

-

8,507.09

Net Change

39,319.37
51,492.91

-

39,319.37

Indebtedness at the end of the ﬁnancial year

-

I. Principal Amount

99,021.00

-

-

99,021.00

-

-

-

-

204.46

-

-

204.46

99,225.46

-

-

99,225.46

ii. Interest due but not paid
iii. Interest accrued but not due
Total (i + ii+ iii)

vii.
A.

51,492.91

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole - time Directors and/or Manager: The Company has only one
Managing Director, Mr. Sandeep Menon.
(Amount in INR in lakhs)
Sr.
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Managing
Director

Total Amount

Mr. Sandeep Menon
1

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

300 .00

300 .00

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2)
Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

(c) Proﬁts in lieu of salary under Section 17(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

2

Stock Options

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

4

Commission
as % of proﬁt

-

-

others, specify….

-

-

5

Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per Act

-

-

300 .00

300 .00

5% of the Net Proﬁt of the Company
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(Amount in INR in lakhs)

B. Remuneration to other Directors:
Sr.
No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Independent Directors
Mr.
Vijay
Kumar

1

2

Independent
Director
Fee for
attending
Board/Committee
Meetings
Commission
Others, please
specify
Total (1)
Other NonExecutive
Directors
Fee for
attending
Board/Committee
Meetings

Commission
Others, please
specify
Total (2)
Total B= 1+2
Total Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per Act

Mr. Girija
Shankar
Nayak

Other Non-Executive Directors

Mr.
Natrajh
Ramakrishna

Mr.
Puranam
Hayagreeva
Ravikumar

Ms.
Renuka
Ramnath

Mr.
Sudhir
Variyar

Mr.
Samir
Bhatia

-

1.80

-

3.50

-

-

-

5.30

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.80
-

-

3.50
-

-

-

-

5.30
-

-

1% of the Net Proﬁt of the Company

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sr.
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

(Amount in INR in lakhs)

Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary
Ms. Pallavi Bhambere

1

Total
Amount

CFO – Mr. Sujay
Patil

Total
Amount

Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961

5. 61

145 .00

150.61

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) Income
Tax Act, 1961
(c) Proﬁts in lieu of salary under Section 17(3)
Income Tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

-

-

-

2

Stock Options

-

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

4

Commission
- as % of proﬁt

-

-

-

- Others, specify….

-

-

-

5

Others, please specify
Total
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viii. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type

Section of
the
Companies
Act

Brief Description

Details of
Penalties/
Punishment/
Compounding
Fees imposed

Authority
[ RD/ NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal made, if any
(give details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICER IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment

None

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director
DIN: 02032154
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Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
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ANNEXURE III TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY
INTRODUCTION
This policy on Nomination and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management and Employees has been formulated
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by
the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
developed this Policy keeping in view the
following aspects:
(a) The level and composition of remuneration should
be reasonable and suﬃcient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors and Employees of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;
(b) Relationship of remuneration to the performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks;
(c) Maintenance of appropriate balance between
ﬁxed and incentive pay in remuneration to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management reﬂecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals;
(d) Provide consistency in remuneration throughout
the Company;
DEFINITIONS
(a) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules framed thereunder, as may be amended
from time to time
(b) “Board” means Board of Directors of the
Company for the time being in force;
(c) “Company” means “Vastu Housing Finance
Corporation Limited”;
(d) “Committee” or “NRC” means “Nomination and
Remuneration Committee” of the Board of the
Company, as may be reconstituted by the Board
and as may subsist from time to time;
(e) “Director” means person appointed as Director
on the Board of the Company pursuant to the
applicable provisions of the Act and includes
Independent Directors of the Company;

Whole-Time Director, Executive Director or Managing
Director, and holding oﬃce as such pursuant to the
applicable provision of the Act and includes a Director
in the whole-time employment of the Company.
(g) 'Key Managerial Personnel' or 'KMP' means persons as
deﬁned in the Act and as appointed in the
employment of the Company.
(h) 'Nomination and Remuneration Policy' or 'this Policy'
means this Policy for nomination and remuneration of
the Directors, KMP, Senior Management and
Employees of the Company as set out hereby,
recommended by the Committee and approved by
Board and as amended from time to time.
(i) 'Senior Management' means the personnel of the
Company who are members of its core management
team excluding Board of Directors comprising all
members of the management one level below the
executive directors, including the functional heads.
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Board has constituted Nomination &
Remuneration Committee comprising of 2 (two) NonExecutive Directors and 2 (two) Independent Directors
pursuant to the provision of the Act and Prudential
Norms prescribed by the National Housing Bank for
Housing Finance Companies. The composition of the
NRC is as per the requirement of the Act and will be
maintained at any given point of time. The NRC is
playing statutory and consultative role in identifying
appropriate personnel to be appointed on the Board
and various committees of the Company and building
appropriate remuneration structure in the Company.
The recognition and appreciation of experience,
expertise, advise, eﬀorts and contribution provided by
the Directors, KMP, Senior Management and
dedication of Employees is to be considered as the
foundation to strategize the remuneration structure.
The Committee would also consider that composition
of remuneration needs to be reasonable and suﬃcient
to attract, retain and motivate directors and senior
management of the quality required to run the
Company successfully.

(f) “Executive Director” means person appointed as
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In its consultative role, the Committee will provide its
recommendations to the Board in respect to matter and
tasks as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.
The Committee to recommend to the Board eﬀective
structures and facilitate a remuneration strategy, which
will meet the needs of the Company.
ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:
The role of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
(NRC) will be the following:
(a) To formulate criteria for determining qualiﬁcations,
positive attributes and independence of a Director.
(b) To specify manner for eﬀective evaluation of
performance of Individual Directors including
Independent Directors, the Board and its
Committees.
(c) To identify persons who are qualiﬁed to become
Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid
down in this policy.
(d) To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.
(e) To recommend to the Board the appointment and
removal of Directors and Senior Management.
(f) To recommend to the Board a policy relating to
remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees.
(g) To devise a policy on Board diversity.
(h) To carry out any other function as is mandated by
the Board from time to time and / or enforced by
any statutory notiﬁcation, amendment or
modiﬁcation, as may be applicable.
(i) To perform such other functions as may be necessary
or appropriate for the performance of its duties.
APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS, KMP
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:
The criteria for the appointment of Directors, KMP and
Senior Management is as follows:
(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the
integrity, qualiﬁcation, expertise and experience of
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at
Senior Management level and recommend to the
Board his/her appointment.
(b) The candidate shall possess adequate qualiﬁcation,
expertise and experience for the position he/she is
considered for appointment.
(c) The appointment of any Whole-Time Director /KMP
Senior Management shall also be governed by the

prevailing employment policy of the Company.
(d) A whole-time KMP of the Company shall not hold oﬃce
in more than one Company except in its subsidiary
company at the same time. However, he/she can be
appointed as a Director in any company with the
permission of the Board.
(e) In case of an Independent Director, the proposed
appointee should possess the desired attributes and
should possess all the qualiﬁcations as prescribed
under Section 149(6) of Companies Act, 2013.
EVALUATION/ ASSESSMENT OF DIRECTORS/KMPS/
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The evaluation/assessment of the Directors, KMPs and the
senior management of the Company is to be conducted
on an annual basis.
Following criteria may assist in determining how eﬀective
the performances of the Directors/ KMPs/Senior
Management have been:
(a) leadership & stewardship abilities
(b) contributing to clearly deﬁne corporate objectives &
plans
(c) communication of expectations & concerns clearly with
subordinates
(d) obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from
external sources.
(e) review & approval achievement of strategic and
operational plans, objectives, budgets
(f) regular monitoring of corporate results against
projections
(g) identify, monitor & mitigate signiﬁcant corporate risks
(h) assess policies, structures & procedures
(i)
(j)
(k)
(l)

direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior management
review management’s succession plan
eﬀective meetings
assuring appropriate board size, composition,
independence, structure
(m) clearly deﬁning roles & monitoring activities of
committees
REMUNERATION TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The remuneration of the Non-Executive Director (“NED”)
including Non-Executive Independent Director (“NEID”)
includes remuneration by way of sitting fees within the
overall statutory limit as prescribed in the Act and as may be
decided by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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Sitting fees
The NED and NEID will be paid sitting fees for attending
meetings of the Board of Directors and its Committee(s)
of which he/she is member, as may be decided by the
Board of Directors with the overall limits as prescribed in
the Act.
Amount of sitting fees shall not exceed Rupees One Lakh
per meeting of the Board or committee thereof. The
sitting fees paid to Independent Directors and Women
Directors shall not be less than the sitting fee payable to
other directors.
- Remuneration
The NED may be paid remuneration by way of
commission as a percentage of proﬁts on annual basis,
as may be decided by the Board of Director, pursuant to
the applicable provision the Act subject to approval of
Members of the Company.

proﬁt of the Company as per audited ﬁnancial statement,
within range as approved by the Members. Commission is
calculated with reference to net proﬁts of the Company in
a particular ﬁnancial year and is determined by the Board
of Directors at the end of the ﬁnancial year based on the
recommendations of the NRC, subject to overall ceilings
and applicable statutory provision stipulated in the Act
and other applicable provisions as may be applicable from
time to time. Amount payable to ED is determined based
on appointment terms, performance criteria as the Board
may consider appropriate keeping in view the
performance of the Company for relevant ﬁnancial year in
terms of the turnover and net proﬁts, cash proﬁt,
performance and contribution by particular Executive
Director, achievements, critical projects performance,
remuneration paid in previous year, industry standard, and
other factors as the Board may think appropriate. The
Board to consider the recommendation of the NRC and
result of performance evaluation.

The distribution of commission amongst the NEDs will
be placed before the Board. The commission will be
distributed on the basis of their attendance and
contribution at the Board and certain Committee
Meetings as well as time spent on operational matters of
the Company.

- Facilities
The Company provides to the Executive Director all
facilities and oﬃce support, as may be necessary in
relation to execution of his oﬃce duties and to attend
operation and business commitments of the Company.

REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The remuneration of the Executive Directors (“ED”) shall
include salary, perquisites and allowances (ﬁxed
component) and commission and/or performance
incentives (variable component). The remuneration to
ED will be as recommended by the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee to the Board and approved by
Members of the Company on the recommendation of
the Board. The Board to propose to the shareholders, the
remuneration including appropriate mix of ﬁxed and
variable components and other terms for appointment
of the ED considering qualiﬁcations, experience,
technical skills, requirement of the Company and
prevailing market conditions. While determining the
remuneration proposal, the Board to consider the
recommendation of the NRC and result of performance
evaluation.

-Variable Pay and Increment(s) in Remuneration of
Executive Directors
The NRC can consider and recommend payment of
variable pay and increment in Remuneration of Executive
Directors within the overall statutory limit as prescribed in
the Act and as may be decided by the Board of Directors
from time to time.

-Fixed Component
The EDs to be paid remuneration by way of monthly
salary / ﬁxed component, as per preapproved terms and
as per the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder.
-Variable Component
The ED may also be paid performance incentives and / or
remuneration by way of commission as percentage of

-Remuneration in case of no proﬁt or inadequate proﬁt
In case, there will be no proﬁt or inadequate proﬁt in any
ﬁnancial year, remuneration to ED will be as per the
appointment terms determined by the Board, subject to
applicable provisions of the Act / applicable law.
R E M U N E R AT I O N T O T H E K E Y M A N A G E R I A L
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel shall
consist of ﬁxed pay and variable pay, in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
-Fixed Pay
The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration,
employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, contribution
to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as recommended
by the NRC and approved by the Board from time to time.
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- Variable Pay
The Variable Component shall be recommended by the
NRC and decided by the Board based on the balance
between performance of the Company and
performance of the Key Managerial Personnel to be
decided annually or at such intervals as may be
considered appropriate.
REMUNERATION TO THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT
The Committee will review and recommend the
remuneration of the Senior Management annually or at
such other intervals as appropriate at the time of
performance appraisal. The Committee to recommend
increase, restructuring with of remuneration of all or few
members of Senior Management as it thinks
appropriate.
STOCK OPTIONS
As and when desirable or requested by the Board, the
Committee will perform function in respect to devising /
monitoring Employees Stock Option Schemes and give

its recommendation / allot sweat equity shares, grant, vest
and exercise of stock options and/or similar rewards to the
eligible Directors, KMP, Senior Management Personnel and
other Employees, as may be permitted under the
applicable law or approved Schemes.
Independent Directors shall not be entitled to stock
options of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director
DIN: 02032154

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
DIN: 00147182

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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ANNEXURE IV TO THE BOARD’S REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]
INTRODUCTION:
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited is a growing
Company and the Company considers social responsibility
as an integral part of its business activities and endeavours
to utilize allocable CSR budget for the beneﬁt of society.
Your company would be undertaking the CSR activities as
listed in Schedule VII and Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. The Company
will engage with stakeholders including experts, NGOs,
professional bodies / forums and the government and
would take up such CSR activities in line with the
government’s intent, which are important for the society at
large.
CSR Policy is stated herein below:
Web-link: https://www.vastuhfc.com/view/policies
COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE
The Board has duly constituted CSR committee pursuant to
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 comprising the
following members :
(a) Mr. Sandeep Menon – Managing Director
(b) Mr. Sudhir Variyar – Nominee Director
(c) Mr. Vijay Kumar – Independent Director

PRESCRIBED CSR SPEND OF VASTU HOUSING FINANCE
CORPORATION LIMITED:
(a) Average net proﬁt of the Company for the last three
ﬁnancial years:
-The average net proﬁt of the Company of the last
ﬁnancial years calculated to be INR 875.77 Lakhs.
(b) Prescribed CSR expenditure:
- The recommended CSR expenditure as per Section 135
for the ﬁnancial year 2017-18 was INR 17.52 Lakhs.
(c) Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year
2018- 19:
i. Total amount spent – Nil
ii. Amount unspent, if any – INR 17.52 Lakh
iii.Manner in which the amount spent during the
ﬁnancial year is detailed below:
(d) In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent
of the average net proﬁt of the last three ﬁnancial years
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.
The Company considers social responsibility as an integral
part of its business activities and endeavours to utilize
allocable CSR budget for the beneﬁt of society. CSR
initiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board
beneﬁtting the community. However, the company has
just embarked on the journey of ascertained CSR
programs.

The Committee shall be required to carry out the
following activities:
(a) Formulate and recommend to the Board for its
consideration and approval, a CSR Policy for the
Company, which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the company in areas or subject
speciﬁed in Schedule VII;
(b) Recommend for the approval of the Board,
programmes/ projects identiﬁed by the Committee to
be undertaken during the ﬁnancial year which are in

For this reason, during the year, the Company’s spend on
the CSR activities has been Nil than the limits prescribed
under Companies Act, 2013. The CSR activities are scalable
with few new initiatives that may be considered in future
and moving forward the Company will endeavour to spend
the complete amount on CSR activities in accordance with
the statutory requirements.
The CSR committee conﬁrms that the monitoring of the
CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and
Policy of the company.

line with the activities speciﬁed in Schedule VII and

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited.

amount of expenditure to be incurred for each of the
programmes/ projects;
(c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of
the Company from time to time;
(d) Update the Board on the status of CSR programmes/
projects undertaken by the Company during the
ﬁnancial year and amount of expenditure incurred.
(e) Recommend to the Board, the Company’s Annual
Report on CSR Activities, for inclusion in the Report of

sd/-

Sandeep Menon
MD & Chairperson
of CSR Committee

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
DIN: 00147182

DIN: 02032154
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019

the Board of Directors of the Company.
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Vastu
Housing Finance Corporation Limited (hereinafter
called 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our veriﬁcation of the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns ﬁled and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its oﬃcers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'):
(a)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing
with client;
(b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; and
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of debt securities) Regulations, 2008.
(vi)The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 and The Housing
Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010, being
special act governing the Company, as the Company is
a Housing Finance Company.
We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses of the following:

ﬁnancial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, and

the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter
We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns ﬁled and other records maintained by

(b) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company
with BSE Limited.
Provisions of the following Acts, Regulations and
Guidelines were not applicable to the Company under
the ﬁnancial year under report:

the Company for the ﬁnancial year ended on 31st March,
2019 according to the provisions of::
(I) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules
made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

(a) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the
rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Beneﬁts) Regulations, 2014;
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;

(ii)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; and
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Sandeep Menon (DIN: 02032154) was reappointed as the Managing Director of the
Company for a term of 5 years commencing from
26th August, 2018 and his remuneration was
approved for a period of 3 years, by passing a
Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 16th May, 2018;

During the period under review, the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as mentioned
above, to the extent applicable.

(iii) The borrowing limit of the Company was
increased from INR 1,000 Crores to INR 2,000
Crores pursuant to the provisions of Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing a
Special Resolution at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company held on 16th May, 2018;

We further report that the Board of Directors of the
Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place
during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(iv) Authority to create charge on the properties of the
Company not exceeding INR 2,000 Crores
pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of
the Companies Act, 2013, was accorded to the
Board of Directors by passing a Special Resolution
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 16th May, 2018;

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance in most cases
and consents for convening the meetings at a shorter
notice were obtained in a few instances and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clariﬁcations on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

(v)

Majority decision is carried through and there were no
dissenting members' views which were required to be
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and
processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period:
(i) 400, 9.95% Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable,
Taxable, Transferable, Listed Series C - Non
Convertible Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were
allotted to Franklin India Corporate Bond
Opportunities Fund on Private Placement basis on
27th April, 2018; which were subsequently listed on
BSE Limited with eﬀect from 11th May, 2018.

Authority to raise funds through Private
Placement of Unsecured/ Secured Redeemable
Non-Convertible Debentures/ Bonds pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 42 & 71 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for an amount not
exceeding INR 2,000 Crores, in or more tranches
during the period of one year from the date of
passing of the resolution, by passing a Special
Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 16th May, 2018;

(vi) Authority to make investment(s) by way of
subscription, purchase or otherwise, securities of
any body corporate; from time to time in one or
more tranches, upto an aggregate amount not
exceeding INR 500 Crores outstanding at any time
notwithstanding that the aggregate of such
investments so far made or to be made are in
excess of the limits prescribed under Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013, by passing a Special
Resolution at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 16th May, 2018;
(vii) 600, 9.95% Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable,
Taxable, Transferable, Listed Series D - Non
Convertible Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were
allotted to Franklin India Income Opportunities
Fund and Franklin India Dynamic Accrual Fund on
Private Placement basis on 28th May, 2018; which
were subsequently listed on BSE Limited with
eﬀect from 7th June, 2018.
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viii) Incorporation of a wholly owned Subsidiary
Company on 28th September, 2018 in the name
and style of 'Vastu Finserve India Private Limited' by
investment of INR 2.5 Crores pursuant to
resolution passed by the Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 8th August, 2018;
(ix) Approval for creation, oﬀer and grant of additional
5,00,000 Employee Stock Options to the
employees of the Company by amendment of the
Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 from time to
time by passing a Special Resolution at the ExtraOrdinary General Meeting of the Company held on
21st August, 2018;
(x)

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company was
increased from INR 600 Crores to INR 1,000 Crores
and consequently, the Capital Clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company was
altered by passing a Special Resolution at the
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 21st August, 2018;

(xvi) 500, Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Transferable, Listed Series D - Non Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan on Private
Placement basis on 27th December, 2018; which
were subsequently listed on BSE Limited with
eﬀect from 2nd January, 2019.
(xvii) Mr. Natrajh Ramakrishna (DIN: 06597041) was
appointed as an Additional Director in
Independent capacity on the Board of the
Company with eﬀect from 12th February, 2019
subject to approval of shareholders at the next
Annual General Meeting;
(xviii)Modiﬁcation of earlier board resolution passed
on 8th August, 2018 by approving issue and oﬀer
of upto 2 Crores Equity Shares of INR 100/- each
at a premium of INR 130/- each amounting to an
exercise price of INR 230/- each to the existing
shareholders of the Company on rights basis, at
the meeting of the Board held on 12th February,
2019.

(xi) 500, Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Transferable, Listed Series A - Non Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to
Franklin India Low Duration Fund on Private
Placement basis on 27th August, 2018; which were
subsequently listed on BSE Limited with eﬀect
from 4th September, 2018.
(xii) 500, Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Transferable, Listed Series B - Non Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to
Franklin India Low Duration Fund on Private
Placement basis on 26th October, 2018; which were
subsequently listed on BSE Limited with eﬀect
from 5th November, 2018.

For Pradeep Purwar & Associates
Company Secretaries
sd/-

Pradeep Kumar Purwar
Proprietor
Place:Thane
Date: April 19, 2019

FCS No. 5769
CoP No. 5918

(xiii) 500, Secured, Senior, Rated, Redeemable, Taxable,
Transferable, Listed Series C - Non Convertible
Debentures of INR 10 Lakh each were allotted to
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan on Private
Placement basis on 27th November, 2018; which
were subsequently listed on BSE Limited with
eﬀect from 3rd December, 2018.
(xiv) The remuneration payable to Mr. Sandeep Menon
(DIN: 02032154), Managing Director of the
Company was revised with eﬀect from the
Financial Year 2018-19 till 25th August, 2021
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and
203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013, by passing a Special Resolution at the ExtraOrdinary General Meeting of the Company held on
17th December, 2018;
(xv) The Main and Other Objects Clauses of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company
were altered by passing a Special Resolution at the
Extra – Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 17th December, 2018;

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 50

Consolidated
financials

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 51

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation
Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements
1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated
ﬁnancial statements of Vastu Housing Finance
Corporation Limited ('Company') and its subsidiary (the
Company and its subsidiary together referred to as 'the
Group'), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31st March 2019, the Consolidated Statement of
Proﬁt and Loss, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements, including a summary of the
signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated
ﬁnancial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated ﬁnancial statements prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')
read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2006,
as amended, gives the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aﬀairs of
the Group as at March 31, 2019, the consolidated proﬁt
and its consolidated cash ﬂows for the year ended on that
date.
2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) speciﬁed under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulﬁlled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe

that the audit evidence we have obtained is suﬃcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
3. Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most signiﬁcance in our
audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our
report.
Classiﬁcation and provisioning of loan portfolio (Refer
Note 2.1.10 of consolidated ﬁnancial statements)
Loans and other credit facilities are classiﬁed as standard
and doubtful in accordance with Housing Finance
Companies (NHB), Directions 2010 as amended from time
to time. Loans are provided for as per management
estimates, subject to minimum provision required as per
the Housing Finance Companies (NHB), Directions 2010.
The provision for Assets being standard, substandard,
doubtful or loss (as applicable) is carried as per the
prudential norms issued by NHB, the regulator. In addition
to the same, the Company has made additional provision
over and above the said requirement based on its
estimates. There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of
the provision estimated given the risk proﬁle of borrowers,
nature of underlying asset of the loans granted, economic
conditions of the country, etc. The Company has however
focused on self-construction business or resale properties
wherein there is generally signiﬁcant customer equity and
probability of default is low.
Auditor's Response – We have assessed the design and
implementation of key internal ﬁnancial controls over loan
classiﬁcation and provisioning. We focused on appropriate
application of accounting principles, validating
completeness and accuracy of the data and tested the
calculations generated from the reporting system of the
Group. The appropriateness of the management's
judgements was also independently reconsidered in
respect of economic factors, segmentation of loan
portfolio and the valuation of recovery assets and
collateral.
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4. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
Company's Annual report, but does not include the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The other information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.
Our opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements
does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
5. Management's Responsibilities for the Consolidated
Financial Statements
The Company's management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these
consolidated ﬁnancial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated ﬁnancial position,
consolidated ﬁnancial performance and consolidated
cash ﬂows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards speciﬁed under
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for maintenance of the adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal ﬁnancial
controls, that were operating eﬀectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, the
management and respective Board of Directors of the
Companies included in the Group are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the Group's ﬁnancial reporting process.
6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
inﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated ﬁnancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal ﬁnancial controls
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company and its
subsidiary company which is company incorporated in
India has adequate internal ﬁnancial controls system in
place and the operating eﬀectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast signiﬁcant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated ﬁnancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
Consolidated ﬁnancial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
Obtain suﬃcient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the ﬁnancial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated ﬁnancial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the ﬁnancial statements
of such entities included in the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings,
including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most signiﬁcance in the audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
beneﬁts of such communication.
7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
a.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
i. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
ﬁnancial statements.
ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.
iii. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss and the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements.
iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated ﬁnancial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
speciﬁed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
v. On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors of the Company as on 31st
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Company and its subsidiary
company incorporated in India and the reports of
the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group Companies incorporated in India is
disqualiﬁed as on 31st March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.
vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal
ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting and the
operating eﬀectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in 'Annexure A' which is based
on the auditor's reports of the Company and
itssubsidiary company incorporated in India.
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vii.With respect to the matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report under section 197(16) of the
Act, as amended:

(c) There were no amounts which were required to
be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Group.

viii.With respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 006711N/N500028

(a) The Group does not have any pending
litigations which would impact its ﬁnancial
position.
(b) The Group did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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'Annexure A' to Independent Auditor's Report
[refer to para 7(a)(vi) of our report to the Members of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
Opinion
We have audited the internal ﬁnancial controls over
ﬁnancial reporting of Vastu Housing Finance
Corporation Limited ('the Company') and its subsidiary
company, which is a company incorporated in India, as
of 31st March, 2019, in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company
and its subsidiary Company, which is company
incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an
adequate internal ﬁnancial controls system over
ﬁnancial reporting and such internal ﬁnancial controls
over ﬁnancial reporting were operating eﬀectively as at
31st March, 2019, based on the internal control over
ﬁnancial reporting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company and its
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal ﬁnancial controls based on the internal control
over ﬁnancial reporting criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal ﬁnancial controls that were operating
eﬀectively for ensuring the orderly and eﬃcient conduct
of its business, including adherence to respective
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable ﬁnancial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial
reporting of the Company and its subsidiary Company,
which is company incorporated in India, based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
ﬁnancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal ﬁnancial controls over
ﬁnancial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated eﬀectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial
controls system over ﬁnancial reporting and their
operating eﬀectiveness. Our audit of internal ﬁnancial
controls over ﬁnancial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating
eﬀectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated ﬁnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal ﬁnancial controls
system over ﬁnancial reporting of the Company and its
subsidiary company, which is incorporated in India.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
A company's internal ﬁnancial control over ﬁnancial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of ﬁnancial reporting
and the preparation of ﬁnancial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal ﬁnancial
control over ﬁnancial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reﬂect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material eﬀect on
the ﬁnancial statements.

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal ﬁnancial
controls over ﬁnancial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal ﬁnancial control over
ﬁnancial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 006711N/N500028

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal ﬁnancial
controls over ﬁnancial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to

sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes

Particulars
I
1
a
b

Equity And Liabilities

2

Share application money pending allotment

3
a
b
c

Non-current liabilities

4
a

Current liabilities

b
c
d

Shareholdersʼ funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

3
4

35,382.18
5,489.72
40,871.90
34,363.59

Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax Liability (net)
Long-term provisions

Trade Payables
Total Outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small
enterprises
Current maturities of long term borrowings
Other current liabilities
Short-term provisions

5
6
7

84,736.54
222.90
961.03
85,920.47

8
8

88.87

5
9
7

14,284.46
11,420.61
163.68
25,957.62
187,113.58

10
11
13
13

102.52
36.00
99.29
130,646.85
130,884.66

12
14
13
13
15

8,079.76
43,542.72
84.40
2,936.07
1,585.97
56,228.92
187,113.58

TOTAL
II
1
a

b
c
2
a
b
c
d
e

As at
31-Mar-19

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property Plant & Equipments
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Long-term loans and advances
Long-term loans and advances towards ﬁnancing activities

Current assets
Current investments
Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances
Current Maturities of Long-term loans towards ﬁnancing activities
Other current assets

TOTAL
Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of the consolidated
ﬁnancial statement

1 to 24

As per our report of even date attached
For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363
Date : April 26, 2019
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

sd/-

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Consolidated Statement of Proﬁt and Loss for the year ending 31st March 2019
Notes

Particulars

I
a
b

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue (I = a + b)

II
a
b
c
d
e

Expenses
Employee beneﬁt expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense
Provisions and write-oﬀs
Total expenses (II = a+b+c+d+e)
Proﬁt before tax (III = I - II )

III
IV
a
b
c
V

(Rs. in Lakhs)

16
17

16,662.40
2,111.55
18,773.95

18
19
20
21
22

3,822.80
7,009.89
1,771.66
44.74
499.56
13,148.65
5,625.30

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax
(Excess)/short provision of tax relating to earlier years
Total tax expense (IV = a + b + c)
Proﬁt for the year (V = III - IV)
Earnings per equity share
Nominal value per equity share (Rs.)
Basic earnings per equity share (Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)

31-Mar-19

1,528.88
177.22
153.73
1,859.83
3,765.47

100.00
10.64
10.55

23
23

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of the consolidated

1 to 24

ﬁnancial statement

As per our report of even date attached
For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 006711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Date : April 26, 2019
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

sd/-

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Consolidated Cash
Statement
Flow Statement
of Proﬁt and
forLoss
the year
for the
ending
year 31st
ending
March
31st2019
March 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Particulars

5,625.30

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Proﬁt / (Loss) before Taxation
Adjustments for:
Income from ﬁxed deposits with banks
Income from redemption of Mutal Funds
Proﬁt / Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets
Expenses on Employees Stock Option Scheme
Depreciation and amortisation

(885.37)
(189.20)
(10.50)
407.00
44.74

Operating proﬁt/(Loss) before working capital changes
Movements in Working Capital:

4,991.97
465.13
22.95
196.68
68.30
(61.00)
(732.49)

Increase/(decrease) in long / short term provisions
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in long term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in short term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets

4,951.55

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

(59,188.49)
(1,538.93)

Housing and other Property Loan Disbursed (Net)
Direct taxes paid (Including TDS)
Net cash ﬂows from Operating Activities

(A)

(55,775.88)

(B)

26.04
(83.07)
885.37
(27,980.00)
(231,045.00)
189.20
223,015.00
(49.76)
(35,042.23)

(C)

34,363.59
60,000.00
(8,507.09)
85,856.50

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of ﬁxed assets
Purchase of ﬁxed assets
Income from ﬁxed deposits with banks
Investment in deposit for more than 3 months
Investment in Mutual Funds
Income from redemption of Mutal Funds
Redemption of Mutual Funds
Investments in Land & Building

Net cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Share Application Pending Allotment
Loan's taken during the Year
Loan's repaid during the Year
Net cash generated from / (used in) from Financing Activities

Net (Decrease)
(Decrease)//Increase
IncreaseininCash
Cash
&&
Cash
Cash
Equivalents
Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

(4,961.61)
(4,961.61)
20,503.33

(A+B+C)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

15,541.72

Components
Cash
& Bank
Balances
theend
year end
Components ofof
Cash
& Bank
Balances
at theatyear
Cash on
onhand
hand
Cash
Deposits
Deposits with
with original
original Maturity
Maturity of
of less
less than
than 3
3 months
months
With
With Banks
Banks -- on
on current
current account
account
Cash&&Cash
Cashequivalents
equivalents
Cash
Add:
Deposits
Add: Deposits with
with original
original Maturity
Maturity of
of more
more than
than 3
3 months
months

8.87
8.87
13,831.00
13,831.00
1,701.85
1,701.85
15,541.72
15,541.72
28,001.00

Cash & Bank Balances

43,542.72

Signiﬁcant
Signiﬁcant
Accounting
Accounting
Policies
Policies
& Notes
& Notes
forming
forming
part
part
of of
thethe
consolidated
consolidated
ﬁnancial statement
For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 006711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
sd/-

1 to 24

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
sd/-

sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Renuka Ramnath

Sandeep Menon

Chairperson

Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Date : April 26, 2019
Place
Place
: Mumbai
: Mumbai

Pallavi Bhambere

Sujay Patil

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31st March 2019
1. Corporate Information
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited ('Parent
Company') is a public Company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013. The Company is engaged in the business of
disbursing loans against the security of house property
to meet housing and other requirements of the
borrowers. The Company is registered with the National
Housing Bank as Non Deposit taking Housing Finance
Company (HFC). At present the Company is providing
service by operating in 12 states through 44 numbers of
branches.
The Consolidated ﬁnancials statement relates to parent
and its 100% subsidiary company being Vastu Finserve
India Private Limited (collectively refered to as 'the
Group' or 'Company')
2.Basis of preparation of consolidated Financial
Statement
The Consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the Company
and its subsidiary have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in India
(Indian GAAP). and accounting standard under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, relevant provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, National Housing Bank Act,
1987 and the Housing Finance Companies, (NHB)
Directions, 2010 as amended from time to time and
various guidelines issued by NHB to the extent
applicable. The ﬁnancial statements have been prepared
on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
convention except interest on loans which have been
classiﬁed as non-performing assets and are accounted
for on realisation basis.
All assets and liabilities have been classiﬁed as current
or non-current as per Companyʼs operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013. Based on the nature of its activities, Company
has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classiﬁcation of
assets and liabilities.

The diﬀerence between the cost of investment in
the subsidiary, over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares in the subsidiary is recognized
in the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as
Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.
The diﬀerence between the proceeds from disposal
of investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount
of its assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal
is recognized in the consolidated Statement of
Proﬁt and Loss being the proﬁt or loss on disposal of
investment in subsidiary.
2.1.2 Use of Estimates
The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in
conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that aﬀect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the managementʼs best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.
2.1.3 Cash ﬂow Statements
Cash ﬂows are reported using the indirect method
whereby cash ﬂows from operating, investing and
ﬁnancing activities of the Company are segregated
and proﬁt before tax is adjusted for the eﬀects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments
2.1.4 Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at historical
cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price, non recoverable taxes and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

2.1 Summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies
2.1.1 Principle of Consolidation
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been
prepared on the following basis:
The ﬁnancial statements of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary company are combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like items
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully
eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS) 21 ‒ “Consolidated Financial Statements”

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of ﬁxed
assets are measured as the diﬀerence between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of
proﬁt and loss when the asset is derecognized.
2.1.5 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is
calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the
management, or those prescribed under the
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ending 31st March 2019
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, whichever
is higher. Leasehold Improvements have been
amortised over the period of Lease. Fixed assets
costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are depreciated
fully with a residual value of 5%, in the year of
purchase.
2.1.6 Intangible Assets and amortization
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net
of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are
amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 3
years.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined as
the diﬀerence between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and
recognised as income or expense in the Statement
of Proﬁt and Loss.
2.1.7 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the assetʼs recoverable
amount. An assetʼs recoverable amount is the
higher of an assetʼs net selling price and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash ﬂows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.
2.1.8 Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and
intended to be held for not more than a year from the
date on which such investments are made, are
classiﬁed as current investments. All other
investments are classiﬁed as long-term
investments. Current investments are carried in the
ﬁnancial statement at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis.
Long-term investments are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminution in value is made
to recognise a decline other than temporary in the
value of the investments. On disposal of an
investment, the diﬀerences between the carrying
amount and disposal proceeds are charged or
credited to the statement of proﬁt and loss.

Investments in properties acquired as part of the
debt asset settlement are recorded at the fair value
or cost which ever is lower on the date of the
transfer. Investments in properties are carried
individually at cost less impairment, if any.
2.1.9 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.
(i) Interest income / fees on housing and other
loans given are recognised at the contracted
interest rate on accrual basis at monthly rest,
except in case of interest on non-performing
assets and charges for delayed payments and
cheque bouncing, if any, which are recognised
only when realised.
(ii) Loan origination income i.e. processing fees and
other charges collected upfront, are recognised
at the inception of the loan.
(iii) Interest income on deposits with banks is
recognised on a time proportion accrual basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.
(iv) Proﬁt / Loss on sale / redemption of Investment
is determined on FIFO basis.
(v) Other income is recognized when it is probable
that the ultimate collection will be made.
2.1.10 Classiﬁcation and provisioning of loan
portfolio
(i) Loans are initially recorded at the disbursed
principal amounts and are subsequently adjusted
for recoveries and any lumpsum principal
repayment (prepayment).
(ii) Loans and other credit facilities are classiﬁed as
standard and doubtful (includes Sub-standard,
Doubtful and loss assets) in accordance with the
extant Housing Finance Companies, (NHB)
Directions, 2010, as amended from time to time.
(iii) Loans are provided for as per the managementʼs
estimates, subject to the minimum provision
required as per the extant Housing Finance
Companies, (NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended
from time to time.
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2.1.11 Employee beneﬁts
(i) Short term employee beneﬁts are recognised as
an expense at the undiscounted amounts in the
Statement of Proﬁt & Loss of the year in which the
related service is rendered.
(ii) Long-term employee beneﬁts, viz., gratuity are
recognized at the present value of the amounts
payable determined at the close of the year based
on actuarial valuation techniques using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and
losses comprise experience adjustments and the
eﬀects of changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged to the Statement of Proﬁt & Loss.
(iii) Company has an Employee Stock Option Scheme
(ʻthe Schemeʼ) which provides the grant of
options to acquire equity shares of the Company
to its eligible employees. The options granted to
eligible employees vest in a graded manner and
these may be exercised by the employees within
a speciﬁed period.
The Company follows the intrinsic value method
to account for its stock-based employee
compensation plans.
Compensation cost, if any, is amortised over the
vesting period.

2.1.12 Foreign Currency Transactions
(i)All transactions in foreign currency are
recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction.
(ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported
using the exchange rate prevailing at the close
of the ﬁnancial year.
(iii)Exchange diﬀerences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on the
restatement of Company's monetary items at
rates diﬀerent from those at which they were
initially recorded during the year, or reported
in previous ﬁnancial statements, are
recognised as incomes or as expenses in the
year in which they arise.
2.1.13 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing
of funds. All borrowing costs are expensed in the
period they occur.
2.1.14 Income Taxes
(i) Tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Current income tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordxance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961, enacted in India. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

(ii) Deferred income taxes reﬂect the impact of
timing diﬀerences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the
current year and reversal of timing diﬀerences
for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
(iii)Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible timing diﬀerences only to the
extent that there is reasonable certainty that
suﬃcient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realised. In situations where
the Company has unabsorbed depreciation or
carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax
assets are recognised only if there is virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence
that they can be realised against future
taxable proﬁts.
(iv)At each reporting date, the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to
the extent that it has become reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that suﬃcient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.
2.1.15 Provisions and Contingent liabilities and Assets
(i) A provision is recognised when there is a
present obligation as a result of past event,
that probably requires an outﬂow of resources
and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are
determined based on the best estimate
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These estimates are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to
reﬂect the current best estimates.
(ii) A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be
conﬁrmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outﬂow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognise a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the
ﬁnancial statements.
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(iii) Contingent assets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements.

amounts of cash and which are subject to insigniﬁcant risk
of changes in value.

2.1.16 Operating Leases
Leases where the lessor eﬀectively retains substantially
all the risks and beneﬁts of ownership of the leased item,
are classiﬁed as operating leases. Operating lease
rentals are recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Proﬁt & Loss in accordance with Accounting Standard 19
- Leases.

2.1.19 Segment Reporting
The Company operates in a single reportable segment i.e.
lending, which have similar risks and returns for the purpose
of AS 17 on ʻSegment Reportingʼ notiﬁed under the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended). The Company operates in a single geographical
segment i.e. domestic.

2.1.17 Statutory Reserve
The Company creates Statutory Reserve every year out of
its proﬁts in terms of Section 29C of the National
Housing Bank Act, 1987. As per the said Act, the
Compnay is required to transfer at least 20% of its net
proﬁt every year to reserve before any dividend is
declared. For this purpose, any Special Reserve created
by the Compay under section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 is considered to be an eligible transfer.
2.1.18 Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of Cash
Flow Statement
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known

2.1.20 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share,
the net proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the eﬀects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.
2.1.21 Prepaid Expense
Expenses incurred during the year which provide beneﬁt in
several accounting years has been treated as revenue
expense only for the period relating to the current year and
balance is treated as prepaid expenses to be adjusted on
pro-rata time basis in the future accounting year.
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31st March 2019

(Rs. in Lakhs)

3. Share capital

31-Mar-19

Authorized
10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

100,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
353,82,180 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

35,382.18
35,382.18

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the
reporting year
Particulars
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the period - Fresh Issue
Outstanding at the end of the period

(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-Mar-19
No. of Shares
Amount
35,382,180
-

35,382.18
-

35,382,180

35,382.18

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each shareholder is
eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In
the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company
after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Shares held by holding company
Particulars
Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

31-Mar-19
No. of Shares
27,290,421

%
77.13%

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars
Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited
Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP

As at Mar 31, 2019
No. of Shares % holding in the
class
27,290,421
77.13%
3,045,664
8.61%

(e) Shares reserved for issue under stock options
During the year the Company has introduced 2 ESOP schemes. The primary objective of the ESOP 2018
Scheme I & II is to reward the key Employees for their association, dedication and contribution to the goals
of the Company. The Company intends to use this ESOP 2018 - Scheme I &II to attract, retain and motivate
key talents working with the Company, by way of rewarding their high performance and motivate them to
contribute to the overall corporate growth and proﬁtability. The Company views employee tock options as
s
long-term incentive tools that would enable the Employees not only to become shareholders, but also to
create potential wealth out of such shareholding in future.
The stock option granted to eligible employees operate under the employee stock option plan Employees
Stock Options Plan 2018 Scheme I and Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 Scheme II. (Refer Note 24.4)
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31st March 2019
4. Reserves and Surplus

(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-Mar-19

Statutory reserve / Special Reserve
(In terms of Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Section 29C of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987.)
Opening Balance
Add: Amount transferred from statement of proﬁt and loss

General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Amount transferred from statement of proﬁt and loss

Surplus/ (deﬁcit) in the statement of proﬁt and loss
Opening Balance
Add: Net Proﬁt for the year
Less: Transfer to statutory / special reserve
Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet
Share Options Outstanding account
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Total Reserves and Surplus
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627.65
1,125.00
1,752.65

111.99
111.99

577.61
3,765.47
(1,125.00)
3,218.08

407.00
407.00
5,489.72
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5. Long-term borrowings

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-current

Current

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-19

Secured
Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures
Term Loan
- from National Housing Bank
- from Banks
- from Others

41,153.85

769.23

4,128.92
24,282.73
15,171.04

254.98
8,281.38
4,978.87

Total amount

84,736.54

14,284.46

Maturities

1 - 3 years

3 - 5 years

3 - 5 Years

1,923.08

15,000.00

25,000.00

41,923.08

866.66

611.68

2,905.56

4,383.90

Term Loan from Banks
9.50% - 11.30% - Term Loans

24,740.77

7,823.33

-

32,564.10

Term Loan from Others
9.50% - 11.30% - Term Loans

16,268.67

3,881.25

-

20,149.92

Rate of Interest
Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures
9.95% - 10.95% - NCD
Term Loan from National Housing Bank
9.05% - 10.50% - Term Loans

Total

Non-convertible debentures are secured by way of
1. Exclusive ﬁrst charge on speciﬁc receivable of the company and
2. On a "pari passu" basis by a ﬁrst ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on the premises situated at
Coimbatore in the state of Tamil Nadu.
Term loans facilities from banks and others are secured by way of exclusive ﬁrst charge and
hypothecation of speciﬁc loan receivables.

6. Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Amount transferred to Special Reserve
Accelerated Depreciation
Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions for performing / non-performing assets
Preliminary Expenses
Net Deferred Tax Asset / (liability)
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510.37
4.75
515.12
291.40
0.82
292.22
(222.90)
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7. Provisions

Provision for employee beneﬁts
Gratuity
Sub Total
Provision for standard assets
Others (Provision for standard assets)
Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax / TDS /Self assessment Tax)

Total Provision

Sub Total

8. Trade Payables

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Long-term

Short-term

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-19

78.89
78.89

0.16
0.16

882.14

19.84

882.14
961.03

143.68
163.52
163.68
31-Mar-19

Total Outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other then micro & small enterprises

88.87

Total Trade Payables

88.87

The Company has received registration certiﬁcates of Vendors who have registered themselves under Micro, Small,
Medium Enterprises Development Act (MSMED Act) 2006 and there are no overdues for those registered Vendors.

9. Other Current Liabilities
Outstanding liabilities for expenses
Bank balance (Book overdraft)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Insurance Payable on behalf of Customers
Employee beneﬁts payable
Statutory Dues payable
Installments received in advance and others
Total Other Current Liabilities
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1,162.15
9,551.17
204.46
163.79
12.00
272.27
54.77
11,420.61
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10.25
12.22
18.47
6.57
107.22
154.73

As at April
01, 2018

10.32
4.61
1.78
40.07
56.78

36.15
36.15

10.25
22.54
23.08
8.34
111.14
175.36

As at March
31, 2019

1.62
2.11
8.37
3.27
45.88
61.26

As at April
01, 2018

0.28
3.34
0.77
2.34
25.47
32.20

20.62
20.62

Depreciation
Disposal
For the
during the
year
year

1.90
5.46
9.14
5.62
50.73
72.84

As at March
31, 2019

As at April
01, 2018

49.13
49.13

11. Intangible assets

Computer software
Total

26.29
26.29

-

Gross Block (at cost)
Addition
Disposal
during the
during the
year
year
75.42
75.42

As at March
31, 2019

26.89
26.89

As at April
01, 2018

12.53
12.53

-

Amortisation
Disposal
For the
during the
year
year

39.42
39.42

As at March
31, 2019

*All redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured on pari passu basis by a ﬁrst ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on the premises
situated at Coimbatore in the state of Tamil Nadu.

(i). Asset for own use
Premises*
Oﬃce equipments
Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements
Computers
Total

10. Tangible assets

Gross Block (at cost)
Addition
Disposal
during the
during the
year
year

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31st March 2019
Property Plant & Equipment

36.00
36.00

As at March
31, 2019

Net Block

8.35
17.08
13.95
2.73
60.41
102.52

As at March
31, 2019

Net Block

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31st March 2019

12. Investments (at cost)
Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)
Sundaram Money Fund
[ Units : 59,57,144 ]
[ NAV : 2,347.80 Lacs ]

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-current

Current

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-19

-

2,345.00

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund
[ Units : 35,776 ]
[ NAV : 1,001.20 Lacs ]

-

1,000.00

HDFC LIQUID FUND POST IPO COLLN A/C
[ Units : 63,681 ]
[ NAV : 2,342.36 Lacs ]

-

2,340.00

Tata Capital Mutual Fund
[ Units : 79,704 ]
[ NAV : 2,346.84 Lacs ]

-

2,345.00

Investments in Property (Unquoted)
Acquired in satisfaction of debt*

-

49.76

Total Investments

-

8,079.76

-

8,038.20
8,030.00
49.76
-

Aggregate market value of quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate provision in diminution in the value of Investments

Investments in properties acquired as part of the debt asset settlement are recorded at the fair value or cost whichever
is lower on the date of the transfer.
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13. Loans and advances
A. Loans (Secured, considered good)
Secured Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Housing Loans - Non - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Non - Individuals
Sub Total - Total Performing Assets
Non Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals
Sub Total - Total Non - Performing Assets
Sub Total (I)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Non-current

Current

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-19

83,445.11
778.39
45,894.67
429.66
130,547.83

1,748.50
10.87
1,168.32
8.38
2,936.07

80.29
38.38
118.67

-

130,666.50

2,936.07
-

Less: Provision for Non Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals
Sub Total (II)

13.55
6.10
19.65

-

Net Loans A (I-II)

130,646.85

2,936.07

I. Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their
categoriation:
a) Equitable / Registered Mortgage of Property.
b) Undertaking to create a security.
c) The personal guarantees of borrowers.
d) Assignment of insurance policies.
II. Includes loans under on going cheque handover post completion of disbursement process but under
security creation.
III. Loans includes Rs. 114.44 Lakh in respect of properties held for disposal under Securitisation and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest Act, 2002

B. Security Deposits

(Unsecured, considered good)

Rent & other Deposits
C. Others Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid Expenses and others advances
Advance income tax (net of provision)

Sub Total

99.29
99.29

11.23
11.23

Sub Total

-

72.63
0.54
73.17

99.29

84.40

130,746.14

3,020.47

Other Loans and Advances (B+C)
Total Loans and Advances (A+B+C)
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

14. Cash and Bank balances

31-Mar-19

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

1,701.85
13,831.00
8.87
15,541.72

Deposits with maturity of less than 12 months

28,001.00

Total Cash & Bank balances

43,542.72

Cash & Bank balances includes share application pending allotment amounting to
Rs. 34,363.59 Lacs

15. Other Current Assets

31-Mar-19

Interest accrued but not due on portfolio loans
Interest accrued but not due on deposits placed with banks
Others Receivable (overdue receivable on loans etc.)
Other Current Assets

1,400.67
139.58
34.39
11.33

Total Other Current Assets

1,585.97
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16. Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-Mar-19

Interest income
Interest on housing and other loans

14,802.70

Other operating revenue
Fees and other charges
Others
Total Revenue form operations

1,764.05
95.65
16,662.40

17. Other Income

31-Mar-19

Income from ﬁxed deposits with bank
Proﬁt on Redemption of Mutual Funds
Income from Display of Advertisement
Training Development and Consultancy Charges
Proﬁt on sale of ﬁxed assets
Miscellaneous income
Total other income
18. Employee Beneﬁt Expenses
Salaries, bonus etc.
Provisional Expenses on Employees Stock Option Scheme
Contribution to provident fund
Contribution to ESIC
Gratuity
Training and Staﬀ welfare expenses
Total Employer Beneﬁt
19. Finance Costs
Interest
On term loans
On Cash Credit
Bank charges and others
Total Finance cost
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885.37
189.20
826.95
199.05
10.50
0.48
2,111.55
31-Mar-19
3,190.84
407.00
132.03
17.66
46.02
29.25
3,822.80
31-Mar-19

6,820.10
2.39
187.40
7,009.89
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20. Other Expenses

(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-Mar-19

Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses
Postage and courier expenses
Repairs and maintenance - others
Rent, rates and taxes
Electricity charges
Insurance charges
Payment to Auditors' (refer details below)
Professional and legal fees
Loan sourcing cost
Application processing expenses
Computer maintenance
Miscellaneous expenses (indirect tax reversal, admin exp. etc.)
Director Sitting fees
Total Other Expenses

36.31
84.49
16.73
36.28
52.51
205.48
35.99
38.60
30.17
195.21
501.88
397.67
67.50
67.54
5.30
1,771.66

As auditor:
18.16

Audit fees
In other capacity:
Tax Audit
Certiﬁcation and other

3.00
9.01
30.17

21. Depreciation and Amortization expenses

31-Mar-19

Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment

44.74
44.74

Total Depreciation and Amortization expenses
22. Provisions and Write-oﬀs

31-Mar-19

Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for non-performing assets / (write backs)
Recovery against loans written oﬀ
Bad debts written oﬀ - housing and other loans

419.18
19.65
(7.51)
68.24

Total Provisions and Write-oﬀs

499.56

23. Earnings Per Share (EPS)
The following reﬂects net proﬁt attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average no.
of equity shares used in computation of basic and diluted EPS:
Particulars
Net proﬁt attributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Dilutive eﬀect of outstanding Stock Options
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS
Nominal Value per share
Basic earnings per equity share (Rs.)
Eﬀect of outstanding Stock Options (Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)
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31-Mar-19
3,765.47
No. of shares
35,382,180
313,283
35,695,463
100.00
10.64
(0.09)
10.55
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24.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars

31-Mar-19

Contingent liability

Nil

Commitments
Capital Commitments
Undisbursed commitments

6.75
4,706.72

24.2 Additional Information as required by Paragraph 2 of the general instruction of preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statement to Schedule III to the companies Act 2013

Particulars

Net Assets
(total assets less total Share of Proﬁt/(Loss)
liabilities)
%

Parent
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Subsidiary
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
Total

Amount in
Lakhs

Amount in
Lakhs

%

100.00%

40,871.76

100.00%

3,765.33

0.00%

0.14

0.00%

0.14

100.00%

40,871.90

100.00%

3,765.47

24.3 Retirement Beneﬁts
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund for qualifying employees to Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner. Contribution to Deﬁned Contribution Plan, recognized as expenses for the year are as under:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars
Employers Contribution to Provident Fund

31-Mar-19

132.03

The Company has a deﬁned beneﬁt gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed ﬁve years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The following
table summarises the component of net beneﬁt expense recognised in the Statement of proﬁt and loss and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans based on Acturial report and relied upon by auditors.
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
Particulars
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Interest Cost
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Losses / (Gain)
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments and Settlements”
Total Expenses to be recognized in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss Account

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19

Amount Recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars
Closing Present Value of obligations
Closing Fair Value of plan assets
Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19
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26.46
0.90
4.92
13.74
46.02

79.05
79.05
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Change in in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation are as follows:
Particulars
Opening Present Value of Obligation
Current Service Cost
Interest on Deﬁned Beneﬁt Obligation
Beneﬁts Paid
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognized in Year
Past Service Cost
Liabilities Assumed on Acqusition/(Settled on Divestiture)
Closing Present Value of Obligations

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19
36.63
26.46
4.92
13.74
81.75

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Gains / (Losses)
Contributions by Employer
Beneﬁts Paid
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19
-

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Companyʼs plans are shown below:
Particulars
31-Mar-19
Mortality Rate Table
IALM 2012 - 14
Discount Rate
7.10%
Salary Escalation Rate
12.00%
Particulars
Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Plan Asset
Surplus / (Deﬁcit)
Experience Adj. on plan liabilities
Experience Adj. on plan asset
Expected Contribution Next Year

2018 - 19
81.75
(81.75)
9.48
0.16

24.4 Employee Stock Option Plan
Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 - Scheme I
The decision to introduce Vastu Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (hereinafter called “Employees Stock
Options Plan 2018 ‒ Scheme I” or referred as “The Scheme”) was taken by the Board of Directors at the meeting
held on 21st July 2017, and was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held
on 23rd March 2018. The plan provides for issuance of Stock options to eligible employees based on ESOP
committeeʼs recommendations. Under the Plan, the options vest not later than maximum period of 10 (Ten) years
from the date of the Grant.
Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 - Scheme II
The decision to introduce Vastu Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (hereinafter called “Employees Stock
Options Plan 2018 ‒ Scheme II” or referred as “The Scheme”) was taken by the Board of Directors at the meeting
held on 8th August 2018, and was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting
held on 21st August 2018. The plan provides for issuance of Stock options to eligible employees based on ESOP
committeeʼs recommendations. Under the Plan, the options vest not later than maximum period of 10 (Ten) years
from the date of the Grant.
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Pursuant to Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the details of the Vastu
Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2018 as on 31st March 2019 are :-

Particulars
Scheme Name

Scheme I
Scheme II
Employees Stock Employees Stock
Options Plan 2018 Options Plan 2018

Options approved to be issued as ESOPs
Date of Grant
Options granted
Options Vested
Exercise Price (in INR)
Method of Settlement

2,000,000
22nd Apr 2018
1,841,400
Nil
100
Equity

500,000
2nd Nov 2018
462,500
Nil
100
Equity

Reconciliation of options

Particulars
Options outstanding at April 1, 2018
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired/ Lapsed during the year
Outstanding at March 31, 2019
Exercisable at March 31, 2019

Scheme I
Nil
1,841,400
Nil
Nil
Nil
1,841,400
Nil

Scheme II
Nil
462,500
Nil
Nil
Nil
462,500
Nil

As per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, details of options granted to Key Managerial
Personnel and employees options amounting to Five percent or more are as below:

Name of the Employee
Sandeep Menon
Sujay Patil
Ravichandra Madapati

No. of Option Granted
1,000,000
350,000
1,30,000

Employee stock options Accounting value of stock options is determined on the basis of “intrinsic value” representing the
excess of the fair value of the share on the date of grant over the exercise price of the options granted under the
Employees Stock Option Plan, and is being amortised as “Deferred employees compensation” on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period in accordance with the Guidance Note (GN) 18, Share Based Payments, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
The Black-Scholes Model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following:
Particulars
Share price as on the date of grant (INR)
Exercise Price (INR)
Expected Volatility (%)
Life of the Options granted (years)
Risk free Interest rate (%)
Expected Dividend rate (%)
Fair Value of Options (INR)
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Scheme I
130
100
12.25%
9.07
7.35%
Nil
78.71

Scheme II
130
100
12.25%
9.6
7.35%
Nil
80.67

Page 77

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for year ending 31st March 2019
The Company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the Company used the fair value model to
determine compensation, its proﬁt after tax and earnings per share as reported would have changed to the amounts as
indicated below:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars
2018 - 19
Proﬁt after tax as reported
3,765.33
Add: ESOP cost using intrinsic value method (net of tax)
407.00
Less: ESOP cost using fair value method (net of tax)
1,074.71
Proﬁt after tax (adjusted)
3,097.62
No. of Shares for Basic EPS
35,382,180
Basic EPS (Rs. per share)
8.75
No. of Shares for Diluted EPS
36,346,817
Diluted EPS (Rs. per share)
8.52

24.5 Related Party Disclosures:
(a) List of related parties:
A. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary
(b) Disclosure of related party transactions:
S. No.
1

Nature of transactions

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19

Managerial Remunerations (included in employee beneﬁt exps.)
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary

300.00
145.00
5.61

Note: Related party relationship is as identiﬁed by the Company and relied upon by the auditors. The transactions with
related parties are disclosed only till the relationship exists.

24.6 Loans & Advances
Balance grouped under loans and advances in certain cases are subject to conﬁrmation and reconciliation.
Impact of the same, if any, shall be accounted as and when determined.
In the opinion of the management the loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized,
paid in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities are adequate and are not in
excess of amount considered reasonably necessary.

24.7 Other Reporting
a. Segment Reporting
The Company has a single reportable segment i.e. ﬁnancing which has similar risk and return for the
purpose of AS 17 on ʻSegment Reportingʼ notiﬁed under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,2006
(as amended).The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic. Further, the subsidiary
company is yet to start its operations as such there are no reportable segments.

b. Foreign Currency Reporting
There were no expenditures or outgo in the foreign exchange currency.
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24.8 Expected future minimum commitment in accordance with AS 19 - Leases during the non-cancellable
period under the lease agreements are as follows:

Particulars
Within one year
Within one - ﬁve years

Mar-19
32.05
4.58

24.9 Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
is as under:
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : Rs. 17.52 Lakh.
(b) Amount spent, utilised and charged during the year - Nil
Company considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors to utilize
allocable CSR budget for the beneﬁt of society. CSR initiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board
beneﬁtting the community. However, the company has just embarked on the journey of ascertained CSR
programs.
For this reason, during the year, the Companyʼs spend on the CSR activities has been Nil than the limits
prescribed under Companies Act, 2013. The CSR activities are scalable with few new initiatives that may be
considered in future and moving forward the Company will endeavor to spend the complete amount on CSR
activities in accordance with the statutory requirements.
24.10 There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 at the end of the year. No interest has been paid/ is payable by
the Company during / for the year to these ʻSuppliersʼ. The above information takes into account only those
suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has responded to the inquiries made by the
Company for this purpose.

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Sandeep Menon
Manging Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation
Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements
1. Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone ﬁnancial
statements of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation
Limited ('Company'), which comprise the Standalone
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019, the Standalone
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss, the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone ﬁnancial statements, including a summary of
signiﬁcant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone
ﬁnancial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone ﬁnancial statements prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') read with
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,2006, as
amended, gives the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of aﬀairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2019, the proﬁt and its cash ﬂows for the
year ended on that date.
2. Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) speciﬁed under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone ﬁnancial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulﬁlled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone ﬁnancial statements.

3. Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most signiﬁcance in our audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated ﬁnancial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matter to be
communicated in our report.
Classiﬁcation and provisioning of loan portfolio (Refer
Note 2.1.10 of consolidated ﬁnancial statements)
Loans and other credit facilities are classiﬁed as standard
and doubtful in accordance with Housing Finance
Companies (NHB), Directions 2010 as amended from time
to time. Loans are provided for as per management
estimates, subject to minimum provision required as per
the Housing Finance Companies (NHB), Directions 2010.
The provision for Assets being standard, substandard,
doubtful or loss (as applicable) is carried as per the
prudential norms issued by NHB, the regulator. In addition
to the same, the Company has made additional provision
over and above the said requirement based on its estimates.
There is an inherent risk around the accuracy of the
provision estimated given the risk proﬁle of borrowers,
nature of underlying asset of the loans granted, economic
conditions of the country, etc. The Company has however
focused on self-construction business or resale properties
wherein there is generally signiﬁcant customer equity and
probability of default is low.
Auditor's Response – We have assessed the design and
implementation of key internal ﬁnancial controls over loan
classiﬁcation and provisioning. We focused on appropriate
application of accounting principles, validating
completeness and accuracy of the data and tested the
calculations generated from the reporting system of the
Group. The appropriateness of the management's
judgements was also independently reconsidered in
respect of economic factors, segmentation of loan portfolio
and the valuation of recovery assets and collateral.
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4. Information Other than the Standalone Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in
Company's Annual Report but does not include the
standalone ﬁnancial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the
Company's ﬁnancial reporting process.

Our opinion on the standalone ﬁnancial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone ﬁnancial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone ﬁnancial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.
5. Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements
The Company's management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
ﬁnancial statements that give a true and fair view of the
ﬁnancial position, ﬁnancial performance and cash ﬂows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards speciﬁed under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
ﬁnancial controls, that were operating eﬀectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone ﬁnancial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone ﬁnancial statements,
management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to

6. Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone ﬁnancial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
inﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone ﬁnancial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone ﬁnancial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal ﬁnancial controls system in place and
the operating eﬀectiveness of such controls.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast signiﬁcant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone ﬁnancial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books.
iii. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss and the Standalone Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the standalone ﬁnancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone ﬁnancial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

iv. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone ﬁnancial
statements comply with the Accounting Standards
speciﬁed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signiﬁcant audit ﬁndings,
including any signiﬁcant deﬁciencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

v. On the basis of the written representations received from
the directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualiﬁed as on 31st March, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most signiﬁcance in the audit of the standalone
ﬁnancial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
beneﬁts of such communication.
7. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
a. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the 'Annexure A', a statement on the
matters speciﬁed in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

vi. With respect to the adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial
controls over ﬁnancial reporting of the Company and
the operating eﬀectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in 'Annexure B'.
vii. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's
Report under section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.
viii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:
(a)The Company does not have any pending litigations
which would impact its ﬁnancial position.
(b)The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.
(c) There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

b. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report
that:
i. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 006711N/N500028
sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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Annexure A to the Auditor's Report
The annexure referred to in Independent Auditors'
Report to the member of Vastu Housing Finance
Corporation Limited ('the Company') on the standalone
ﬁnancial statement for the year ended 31st March 2019,
we report that;

(i) In respect of Fixed Assets
a) The Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situtation of its ﬁxed assets.
b) The Company has a regular program of physical
veriﬁcation to cover all the items of ﬁxed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the program, certain ﬁxed assets were physically
veriﬁed by the management during the year.
According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such veriﬁcation.
c) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of the
immovable property is held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.
(ii)The nature of business of the company does not
require to have any physical inventory. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.
(iii)The Company has not granted any secured or
unsecured loan to companies, ﬁrms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”). Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b)
and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act
in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.
(v) According to the information and explanation given
to us, the company has not accepted any deposits
which are covered under the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been speciﬁed
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Act for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
(vii) According to the information and explanations given to
us, in respect of Statutory Dues:
a) The Company has generally been regular in
depositing its undisputed statutory dues (with
respect to amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account) including Provident Fund,
Employees State insurance, income-tax, goods and
services tax, cess and other material statutory dues
(where applicable) to the appropriate authorities.
There were no material undisputed dues payable,
outstanding as on 31st March, 2019 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became
payable.
b) There are no amounts in respect of income tax, ,
service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise or value added tax that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.
(viii) According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings to ﬁnancial
institutions, banks, government or debenture holders.
(ix) The company has applied the amount raised by it by
way of term loans and debt instruments for the
purpose for which those loans were obtained except
parking of the funds amounting to Rs.15,288 Lakhs (PY
Rs.19,772 Lakhs) in ﬁxed deposits or mutual funds
pending utilization. The company did not raise money
by way of initial public oﬀer or further public oﬀer
during the year.
(x) During the year, the Company has reported 2 casesof
fraud by the customers with respect to false and
fabricated documents submitted for sanction and
disbursement of the loan amount totalling to Rs. 31.63
Lakh. Further, according to the information and
explanation given to us, no material fraud by the
company or on the company by its oﬃcers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.
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(xi) The managerial remuneration has been paid or
provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
(xiii) As per the information and explanations given
by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the
transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act
where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting
standards.
(xiv) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv)
of the Order is not applicable.

(xv) As per the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transaction with
directors or persons connected with him during
the year and hence the provisions of Section 192
of the Act is not applicable to the company.
(xvi) As per the information and explanations given
by the management, company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3
(xvi) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 006711N/N500028

sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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'Annexure B' to Independent Auditor's Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting of Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
('the Company') under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion
We have audited the internal ﬁnancial controls over
ﬁnancial reporting of Vastu Housing Finance
Corporation Limited ('the Company') as of 31st March,
2019, in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
ﬁnancial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.
In our opinion, to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
ﬁnancial controls system over ﬁnancial reporting and
such internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting
were operating eﬀectively as at 31st March, 2019, based
on the internal control over ﬁnancial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Company's management and Board of Directors are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
ﬁnancial controls based on the internal control over
ﬁnancial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
ﬁnancial controls that were operating eﬀectively for
ensuring the orderly and eﬃcient conduct of its
business, including adherence to respective Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable ﬁnancial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act”).

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal ﬁnancial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
eﬀectively in all material respects.Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal ﬁnancial controls system over
ﬁnancial reporting and their operating eﬀectiveness. Our
audit of internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal ﬁnancial
controls over ﬁnancial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating eﬀectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
ﬁnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
suﬃcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal ﬁnancial controls
system over ﬁnancial reporting of the Company.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting A company's internal ﬁnancial control over
ﬁnancial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of ﬁnancial
reporting and the preparation of ﬁnancial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal ﬁnancial
control over ﬁnancial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reﬂect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of ﬁnancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
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of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material eﬀect on
the ﬁnancial statements. Inherent Limitations of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting Because of
the inherent limitations of internal ﬁnancial controls
over ﬁnancial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal ﬁnancial controls over ﬁnancial reporting

to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
ﬁnancial control over ﬁnancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
For T R Chadha & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 006711N/N500028

sd/-

Place : Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2019
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019
Notes

Particulars
I
1
a
b

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholdersʼ funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

3
4

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at
31-Mar-18

As at
31-Mar-19

35,382.18
5,489.58
40,871.76

35,382.18
1,317.25
36,699.43

34,363.59

-

5
6
7

84,736.54
222.75
961.03
85,920.32

40,495.00
45.69
504.02
41,044.71

8
8

88.43

65.48

5
9
7

14,284.46
11,420.60
163.68
25,957.17
187,112.84

7,033.09
11,228.39
11.88
18,338.84
96,082.98

II ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
a Property Plant & Equipments
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
b Non Current Investments
c Long-term loans and advances
d Long-term loans and advances towards ﬁnancing activities

10
11
12
13
13

102.52
14.60
250.00
99.29
130,646.85
131,113.26

93.49
22.24
167.59
72,577.37
72,860.69

2
a
b
c
d
e

12
14
13
13
15

8,079.76
43,316.63
87.88
2,936.07
1,579.24
55,999.58
187,112.84

20,524.33
26.88
1,817.06
854.02
23,222.29
96,082.98

2 Share application money pending allotment
3
a
b
c

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax Liability (net)
Long-term provisions

4 Current liabilities
a Trade Payables:
Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises;
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises
b Current maturities of long term borrowings
c Other current liabilities
d Short-term provisions
TOTAL

Current assets
Current investments
Cash and bank balances
Short-term loans and advances
Current Maturities of Long-term loans towards ﬁnancing activities
Other current assets
TOTAL

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial 1 to 24
As per our report of even date attached

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants

sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Date : April 26, 2019
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss for the year ending 31st March 2019
Particulars
I
a
b

Income
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue (I = a + b)

II
a
b
c
d
e

Expenses
Employee beneﬁt expenses
Finance costs
Other expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense
Provisions and write-oﬀs
Total expenses (II = a+b+c+d+e)
Proﬁt before tax (III = I - II )

III
IV
a
b
c
V

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Notes

31-Mar-19

16
17

16,662.40
2,106.13
18,768.53

7,378.51
2,121.85
9,500.36

18
19
20
21
22

3,822.80
7,009.88
1,767.21
44.07
499.56
13,143.52
5,625.01

2,707.66
2,054.63
1,546.74
59.89
381.14
6,750.06
2,750.30

1,528.88
177.07
153.73
1,859.68
3,765.33

737.48
51.82
789.29
1,961.01

100.00
10.64
10.55

100.00
7.02
7.02

Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax
(Excess)/short provision of tax relating to earlier years
Total tax expense (IV = a + b + c)
Proﬁt for the year (V = III - IV)
Earnings per equity share
Nominal value per equity share (Rs.)
Basic earnings per equity share (Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)

23
23

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of the
ﬁnancial statement

31-Mar-18

1 to 24

As per our report of even date attached

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Date : April 26, 2019
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

sd/-

Sandeep Menon
Managing Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ending 31st March 2019
For the year ending
March 31, 2019

Particulars
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Proﬁt / (Loss) before Taxation
Adjustments for:
Income from ﬁxed deposits with banks
Income from redemption of Mutal Funds
Proﬁt / Loss on sale of ﬁxed assets
Expenses on Employees Stock Option Scheme
Depreciation and amortisation
Operating proﬁt/(Loss) before working capital changes
Movements in Working Capital:
Increase/(decrease) in long / short term provision
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in long term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in short term loans and advances
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets

5,625.01

2,750.30

(879.95)
(189.20)
(10.50)
407.00
44.07
4,996.43

(617.56)
59.89
2,192.63

465.13
22.95
192.21
68.30
(61.00)
(725.22)

420.59
6,194.78
(39.42)
(10.04)
(637.25)

4,958.80

8,121.29

(59,188.49)
(1,538.93)
(55,768.62)

(54,255.55)
(759.28)
(46,893.54)

26.04
(61.00)
879.95
(27,980.00)
(231,045.00)
189.20
223,015.00
(49.76)
(250.00)

(106.66)
617.56
-

(B)

(35,275.58)

510.90

(C)

34,363.59
60,000.00
(8,507.09)
85,856.50

22,500.00
42,100.00
(2,780.63)
61,819.37

(A+B+C)

(5,187.70)

15,436.73

20,503.33

5,066.60

15,315.63

20,503.33

8.87
13,621.00
1,685.76
15,315.63
28,001.00
43,316.63

8.34
19,751.00
743.99
20,503.33
21.00
20,524.33

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Housing and other Property Loan Disbursed (Net)
Direct taxes paid (Including TDS)
Net cash ﬂows from Operating Activities

(A)

B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of ﬁxed assets
Purchase of ﬁxed assets
Income from ﬁxed deposits with banks
Investment in deposit for more than 3 months
Investment in Mutual Funds
Income from redemption of Mutal Funds
Redemption from Mutual Funds
Investment in Land & Building
Investment in shares of Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
Net cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Rights Issue
Proceeds from Share Application Pending Allotment
Loan's taken during the year
Loan's repaid during the year
Net cash generated from / (used in) from Financing Activities
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents

For the year ending
March 31, 2018

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Components of Cash and Bank Balances at the year end
Cash on hand
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
With Banks - on current account
Cash & Cash equivalents
Add: Deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months
Cash & Bank Balances

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of the ﬁnancial statement

1 to 24

As per our report of even date attached
For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson
sd/-

Date : April 26, 2019
Place : Mumbai

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary
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Managing Director
sd/-
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Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending 31st March, 2019

1.

Corporate Information
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited ('the
Company') is a public company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in
the business of disbursing loans against the
security of house property to meet housing and
other requirements of the borrowers. The Company
is registered with the National Housing Bank as Non
Deposit taking Housing Finance Company (HFC). At
present the Company is providing service by
operating in 12 states through 44 numbers of
branches.

2.

Basis for preparation
The ﬁnancial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The
Company has prepared these ﬁnancial statements
to comply in all material respects with the
accounting standards speciﬁed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, relevant provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, National Housing Bank
Act, 1987 and the Housing Finance Companies,
(NHB) Directions, 2010 as amended from time to
time and various guidelines issued by NHB to the
extent applicable. The ﬁnancial statements have
been prepared on an accrual basis and under the
historical cost convention except interest on loans
which have been classiﬁed as non-performing
assets and are accounted for on realisation basis.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of ﬁnancial statements are consistent with those of
previous year.
All assets and liabilities have been classiﬁed as
current or non-current as per Companyʼs operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of its
activities, Company has determined its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and
non-current classiﬁcation of assets and liabilities.

2.1

Summary of signiﬁcant accounting policies
2.1.1 Use of Estimates
The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in
conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that aﬀect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the managementʼs best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result

in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.
2.1.2 Cash ﬂow Statements
Cash ﬂows are reported using the indirect method
whereby cash ﬂows from operating, investing and
ﬁnancing activities of the Company are segregated
and proﬁt before tax is adjusted for the eﬀects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments
2.1.3 Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at historical
cost, less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price, non recoverable taxes and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of ﬁxed
assets are measured as the diﬀerence between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of
proﬁt and loss when the asset is derecognized.
2.1.4 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is
calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the
management, or those prescribed under the
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, whichever
is higher. Leasehold Improvements have been
amortised over the period of Lease.
Fixed assets costing upto Rs.5,000 individually are
depreciated fully with a residual value of 5%, in the
year of purchase.
2.1.5 Intangible Assets and amortization
Intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net
of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are
amortised on a straight line basis over a period of 3
years.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an intangible asset are determined asthe
diﬀerence between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as
income or expense in the Statement of Proﬁt and
Loss.
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2.1.6 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the assetʼs recoverable
amount. An assetʼs recoverable amount is the
higher of an assetʼs net selling price and its value in
use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash ﬂows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reﬂects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks speciﬁc to the asset.
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.
2.1.7 Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and
intended to be held for not more than a year from the
date on which such investments are made, are
classiﬁed as current investments. All other
investments are classiﬁed as long-term
investments. Current investments are carried in the
ﬁnancial statement at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis.
Long-term investments are carried at cost.
However, provision for diminution in value is made
to recognise a decline other than temporary in the
value of the investments. On disposal of an
investment, the diﬀerences between the carrying
amount and disposal proceeds are charged or
credited to the statement of proﬁt and loss.

(ii) Loan origination income i.e. processing fees and
other charges collected upfront, are recognised at
the inception of the loan.
(iii) Interest income on deposits with banks is
recognised on a time proportion accrual basis taking
into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.
(iv)Proﬁt / Loss on sale / redemption of Investment is
determined on FIFO basis.
(v)Other income is recognized when it is probable that
the ultimate collection will be made.
2.1.9 Classiﬁcation and provisioning of loan portfolio
(i) Loans are initially recorded at the disbursed principal
amounts and are subsequently adjusted for
recoveries and any lumpsum principal repayment
(prepayment).
(ii) Loans and other credit facilities are classiﬁed as
standard and doubtful (includes Sub-standard,
Doubtful and loss assets) in accordance with the
Housing Finance Companies, (NHB) Directions,
2010, as amended from time to time.
(iii)Loans are provided for as per the managementʼs
estimates, subject to the minimum provision
required as per the Housing Finance Companies,
(NHB) Directions, 2010, as amended from time to
time.
2.1.10 Employee beneﬁts

Investments in properties acquired as part of the
debt asset settlement are recorded at the fair value
or cost whichever is lower on the date of the
transfer. Investments in properties are carried
individually at cost less impairment, if any.
2.1.8 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the economic beneﬁts will ﬂow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i) Interest income / fees on housing and other loans
given are recognised at the contracted interest
rate on accrual basis at monthly rest, except in
case of interest on non-performing assets and
charges for delayed payments and cheque
bouncing, if any, which are recognised only when
realised.

(i) Short term employee beneﬁts are recognised as an
expense at the undiscounted amounts in the
Statement of Proﬁt & Loss of the year in which the
related service is rendered.
(ii)Long-term employee beneﬁts, viz., gratuity are
recognized at the present value of the amounts
payable determined at the close of the year based on
actuarial valuation techniques using the Projected
Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses
comprise experience adjustments and the eﬀects of
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to the
Statement of Proﬁt & Loss.

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 92

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ending 31st March, 2019
(iii)Company has an Employee Stock Option
Scheme (ʻthe Schemeʼ) which provides the
grant of options to acquire equity shares of the
Company to its eligible employees. The options
granted to eligible employees vest in a graded
manner and these may be exercised by the
employees within a speciﬁed period.
The Company follows the intrinsic value method
to account for its stock-based employee
compensation plans. Compensation cost, if any,
is amortised over the vesting period.
2.1.11 Foreign Currency Transactions
(i) All transactions in foreign currency are
recognised at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of the transaction.
(ii) Foreign currency monetary items are reported
using the exchange rate prevailing at the close
of the ﬁnancial year.
(iii) Exchange diﬀerences arising on the settlement
of monetary items or on the restatement of
Company's monetary items at rates diﬀerent
from those at which they were initially recorded
during the year, or reported in previous ﬁnancial
statements, are recognised as incomes or as
expenses in the year in which they arise

(iii)Deferred tax assets are recognised for
deductible timing diﬀerences only to the extent
that there is reasonable certainty that suﬃcient
future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised
only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that they can be realised
against future taxable proﬁts.
(iv) At each reporting date, the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset to
the extent that it has become reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that suﬃcient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.
2.1.14 Provisions and Contingent liabilities and
Assets
(i) A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation as a result of past event, that
probably requires an outﬂow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to
their present value and are determined based
on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These
estimates are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reﬂect the current best
estimates.

.
2.1.12 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
All borrowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur.
2.1.13 Income Taxes
(i) Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,
enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date
(ii) Deferred income taxes reﬂect the impact of
timing diﬀerences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the
current year and reversal of timing diﬀerences
for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(ii) A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be
conﬁrmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outﬂow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the ﬁnancial statements.
(iii)Contingent assets are neither recognised nor
disclosed in the ﬁnancial statements.
2.1.15 Operating Leases
Leases where the lessor eﬀectively retains
substantially all the risks and beneﬁts of ownership
of the leased item, are classiﬁed as operating
leases. Operating lease rentals are recognized as an
expense in the Statement of Proﬁt & Loss in
accordance with Accounting Standard 19 - Leases.
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2.1.16 Statutory Reserve
The Company creates Statutory Reserve every year
out of its proﬁts in terms of Section 29C of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987. As per the said
Act, the Company is required to transfer at least 20%
of its net proﬁt every year to reserve before any
dividend is declared. For this purpose, any Special
Reserve created by the Company under section
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is considered
to be an eligible transfer.
2.1.17 Cash and Cash Equivalents for the purpose of
Cash Flow Statement
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits
with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
insigniﬁcant risk of changes in value.
2.1.18 Segment Reporting
The Company operates in a single reportable
segment i.e. lending, which have similar risks and

returns for the purpose of AS 17 on ʻSegment
Reportingʼ notiﬁed under the Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended). The Company
operates in a single geographical segment i.e.
domestic.
2.1.19 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
net proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net proﬁt or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for
the eﬀects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
2.1.20 Prepaid Expense
Expenses incurred during the year which provide
beneﬁt in several accounting years has been treated as
revenue expense only for the period relating to the
current year and balance is treated as prepaid
expenses to be adjusted on pro-rata time basis in the
future accounting year.

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 94

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes to the ﬁnancial statements for year ending 31st March 2019
3. Share Capital
Authorized
10,00,00,000 (March 31, 2018 : 6,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
353,82,180 (March 31, 2018 : 353,82,180) Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

100,000.00

60,000.00

35,382.18
35,382.18

35,382.18
35,382.18

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the period - Fresh Issue
Outstanding at the end of the period

31-Mar-19
No. of Shares
Amount
35,382,180
35,382.18
35,382,180
35,382.18

31-Mar-18
No. of Shares
Amount
12,882,180
12,882.18
22,500,000
22,500.00
35,382,180
35,382.18

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
(c) Shares held by holding company
Particulars
Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

31-Mar-19
No. of Shares
%
27,290,421
77.13%

31-Mar-18
No. of Shares
%
27,290,421
77.13%

(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited

As at Mar 31, 2019
% holding in
the class
27,290,421
77.13%

Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP

3,045,664

Particulars

No. of Shares

8.61%

As at Mar 31, 2018
% holding in
the class
27,290,421
77.13%

No. of Shares
3,045,664

8.61%

(e) Shares reserved for issue under stock options
During the year the Company has introduced 2 ESOP schemes. The primary objective of the ESOP 2018 Scheme I & II is to reward
the key Employees for their association, dedication and contribution to the goals of the Company. The Company intends to use this
ESOP 2018 - Scheme I &II to attract, retain and motivate key talents working with the Company, by way of rewarding their high
performance and motivate them to contribute to the overall corporate growth and proﬁtability. The Company views employee stock
options as long-term incentive tools that would enable the employees not only to become shareholders, but also to create potential
wealth out of such shareholding in future.
The stock option granted to eligible employees operate under the employee stock option plan Employees Stock Options Plan 2018
Scheme I and Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 Scheme II. (Refer Note 24.4)
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4. Reserves and surplus
Statutory reserve / Special Reserve
(In terms of Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Section
29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987.)
Opening Balance
Add: Amount transferred from statement of proﬁt and loss
Closing Balance
General Reserve
Opening Balance
Add: Amount transferred from statement of proﬁt and loss
Closing Balance
Surplus/ (deﬁcit) in the statement of proﬁt and loss
Opening Balance
Add: Net Proﬁt for the year
Less: Transfer to statutory / special reserve
Balance Carried Forward to Balance Sheet
Share Options Outstanding account
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

Total Reserves and Surplus
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31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

627.65
1,125.00
1,752.65

77.59
550.06
627.65

111.99
111.99

111.99
111.99

577.61
3,765.33
(1,125.00)
3,217.94

(833.34)
1,961.01
(550.06)
577.61

407.00
407.00

-

5,489.58

1,317.25
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Non-current portion
5. Long-term borrowings

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Current maturities
31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Secured
41,153.85

11,923.08

769.23

576.92

4,128.92

1,383.90

254.98

116.10

- from Banks

24,282.73

11,638.63

8,281.38

3,588.57

- from Others

15,171.04

15,549.39

4,978.87

2,751.50

Total Borrowings

84,736.54

40,495.00

14,284.46

7,033.09

Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures
Term Loan
- from National Housing Bank

Maturity proﬁle and Terms
Maturities

1 - 3 years

3 - 5 Years

> 5 Years

Total

Rate of Interest
Debenture - Secured
9.95% - 10.95% - NCD

1,923.08

15,000.00

25,000.00

41,923.08

866.66

611.68

2,905.56

4,383.90

24,740.77

7,823.33

-

32,564.10

16,268.67

3,881.25

-

20,149.92

Term Loan from National Housing Bank
9.05% - 10.50% - Term Loans
Term Loan from Banks
9.5% - 11.30% - Term Loans
Term Loan from Others
9.5% - 11.30% - Term Loans

A. Term loans facilities from banks and others are secured by way of exclusive ﬁrst charge and hypothecation of speciﬁc loan
receivables.
B. All redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured by way of
1. Exclusive ﬁrst charge on speciﬁc receivable of the company and
2. On a pari passu basis by a ﬁrst ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on the premises situated at Coimbatore in the
state of Tamil Nadu.

(Rs. in Lakhs)
6. Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Amount transferred to Special Reserve
Accelerated Depreciation

510.37

172.93

3.78

14.90

514.15

187.83

291.40
291.40

142.14
142.14

(222.75)

(45.69)

Deferred Tax Assets
Provisions for performing / non-performing assets

Net Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability)

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Page 97

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes to the ﬁnancial statements for year ending 31st March 2019
Long-term
7. Provisions
Provision for employee beneﬁts
Gratuity
Sub Total

31-Mar-19

Short-term

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

78.89
78.89

33.01
33.01

0.16
0.16

0.09
0.09

882.14

471.01

19.84

11.79

-

-

143.68

-

882.14
961.03

471.01
504.02

163.52
163.68

11.79
11.88

Provision for standard assets
Others (Provision for standard assets)
Provision for Taxation (Net of Advance Tax / TDS
/Self assessment Tax)
Sub Total
Total Provisions

8. Trade Payable

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

*Total Outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other then micro & small enterprises

88.43

65.48

Total Trade Payable

88.43

65.48

* The Company has received registration certiﬁcates of vendors who have registered themselves under Micro, Small, Medium
Enterprises Development Act (MSMED Act) 2006 and there are No overdues for those registered vendors.
9. Other Current Liabilities

Outstanding liabilities for expenses
Bank balance (Book overdraft)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Insurance Payable on behalf of Customers
Employee beneﬁts payable
Statutory Dues payable
Installments received in advance and others
Other liabilities
Total Other Current Liabilities
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31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

1,162.15
9,551.17
204.46
163.79
12.00

975.55
9,378.00
147.22
165.38
18.18

272.26
54.77
-

130.54
395.73
17.79

11,420.60

11,228.39
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107.22
154.73

10.25
12.22
18.47
6.57

2018

As at April 01,

40.07
56.78

10.32
4.61
1.78

Addition
during the
year

36.15
36.15

-

Disposal
during the
year

Gross Block (at cost)

111.14
175.36

10.25
22.54
23.08
8.34

2019

As at Mar 31,

45.88
61.26

1.62
2.11
8.37
3.27

2018

As at April 01,

25.47
32.20

0.28
3.34
0.77
2.34

For the
year

20.62
20.62

-

Disposal
during the
year

Depreciation

50.73
72.84

1.90
5.46
9.14
5.62

2019

As at Mar 31,

Computer software
Total

11. Intangible assets

49.13
49.13

2018

As at April 01,

4.22
4.22

Addition
during the
year
-

Disposal
during the
year

Gross Block (at cost)

53.35
53.35

2019

As at Mar 31,

26.89
26.89

2018

As at April 01,

11.86
11.86

For the
year

-

Disposal
during the
year

Amortisation

38.75
38.75

2019

As at Mar 31,

*All redeemable non-convertible debentures are secured on pari passu basis by a ﬁrst ranking charge by way of legal mortgage on the premises situated at
Coimbatore in the state of Tamil Nadu.

Computers
Total

(i). Asset for own use
Premises*
Oﬃce equipments
Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements

10. Tangible assets

Property Plant & Equipment

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
Notes to the ﬁnancial statements for year ending 31st March 2019

14.60
14.60

2019

As at Mar 31,

22.24
22.24

2018

As at March 31,

61.34
93.49

8.63
10.11
10.11
3.30

2018

As at March 31,

Net Block

60.41
102.52

8.35
17.08
13.95
2.73

2019

As at Mar 31,

Net Block

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Computer software
Total

11. Intangible assets

Computers
Total

(i). Asset for own use
Premises*
Oﬃce equipments
Furniture and Fittings
Leasehold Improvements

10. Tangible assets

38.25
38.25

2017

As at April 01,

43.14
58.95

2.21
7.03
6.57

2017

As at April 01,

10.88
10.88

Addition
during the
year

-

Disposal
during the
year

-

-

Disposal
during the
year

Gross Block (at cost)

64.09
95.80

10.25
10.02
11.44
-

Addition
during the
year

Gross Block (at cost)

Notes to the ﬁnancial statements for year ending 31st March 2018

49.13
49.13

2018

As at Mar 31,

107.23
154.74

10.25
12.23
18.47
6.57

2018

As at Mar 31,

12.30
12.30

2017

As at April 01,

9.23
15.95

0.29
5.23
1.19

2017

As at April 01,

14.58
14.58

For the
year

-

Disposal
during the
year

-

-

Disposal
during the
year

Amortisation

36.66
45.31

1.62
1.82
3.13
2.08

For the
year

Depreciation

26.89
26.89

2018

As at Mar 31,

45.89
61.26

1.62
2.11
8.36
3.27

2018

As at Mar 31,

As at Mar 31,

22.24
22.24

2018

As at Mar 31,

25.95
25.95

2017

As at March 31,

33.91
43.00

1.91
1.80
5.37

2017

As at March 31,

Net Block

61.33
93.48

8.63
10.11
10.11
3.29

2018

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Net Block

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited
(Rs. in Lakhs)
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Non-Current
12. Investments (at cost)

31-Mar-19

Current

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

250.00

-

-

-

Investment in Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Sundaram Money Fund
[ Units : 59,57,144 ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]
[ NAV : 2,347.80 Lacs ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]

-

-

2,345.00

-

Franklin Templeton Mutual Fund
[ Units : 35,776 ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]
[ NAV : 1,001.20 Lacs ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]

-

-

1,000.00

-

HDFC LIQUID FUND POST IPO COLLN A/C
[ Units : 63,681 ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]
[ NAV : 2,342.36 Lacs ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]

-

-

2,340.00

-

Tata Capital Mutual Fund
[ Units : 79,704 ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]
[ NAV : 2,346.84 Lacs ( P.Y. : Nil ) ]

-

-

2,345.00

-

-

-

49.76

-

250.00

-

8,079.76

-

250.00
-

-

8,038.20
8,030.00
49.76
-

-

Investment in Shares (Unquoted)
Investment in Subsidiaries
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
[25,00,000 ( P.Y. : Nil ) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid]

Investments in Property (Unquoted)
Acquired in satisfaction of debt*
Total Investment
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of quoted Investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments
Aggregate provision in diminution in the value of Investments

*Investments in properties acquired as part of the debt asset settlement are recorded at the fair value or cost whichever is lower on the
date of the transfer.
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Non-Current
13. Loans and advances

31-Mar-19

A. Loans (Secured, considered good)
Secured Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Housing Loans - Non - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Non - Individuals

Current

31-Mar-18

1,053.41
763.65

72,577.37

80.29
38.38
118.67

-

-

-

Subtotal - (I)

130,666.50

72,577.37

Subtotal - (II)

13.55
6.10
19.65

-

2,936.07
-

1,817.06
-

Net Loans (I-II)

130,646.85

72,577.37

2,936.07

1,817.06

Less: Provision for Non Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals

48,022.08
24,555.29

31-Mar-18

1,748.50
10.87
1,168.32
8.38
2,936.07

Sub-total - Total Performing Asset
Non Performing Assets
Housing Loans - Individuals
Loan Against Property - Individuals
Sub-total - Total Non Performing Asset

83,445.11
778.39
45,894.67
429.66
130,547.83

31-Mar-19

1,817.06

I. Loans granted by the Company are secured by any or all of the following as applicable, based on their categoriation:
a) Equitable / Registered Mortgage of Property.
b) Undertaking to create a security.
c) The personal guarantees of borrowers.
d) Assignment of insurance policies.
II. Includes loans under on going cheque handover post completion of disbursement process but under security creation.
III.Loans includes Rs. 114.44 Lakh (PY Nil ) in respect of properties held for disposal under Securitisation and Reconstruction
of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest Act, 2002

B. Security Deposits (Unsecured, considered good)
Rent & other Deposits

Sub Total

99.29
99.29

93.29
93.29

11.23
11.23

-

Sub Total

-

74.30
74.30

4.02
72.63
76.65

26.88
26.88

99.29

167.59

87.88

26.88

130,746.14

72,744.96

3,023.95

1,843.94

C. Others Loans & Advances
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Related Parties (Refer note 24.5)
Prepaid expenses and other advances
Advance income tax (net of provision)

Other Loans and Advances (B+C)
Total Loans and Advances (A+B+C)
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14. Cash & Bank Balances
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than 3 months
Cash on hand

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

1,685.76
13,621.00
8.87

743.99
19,751.00
8.34

15,315.63

20,503.33

Deposits with maturity of less than 12 months

28,001.00

21.00

Total Cash & Bank Balances
cash & bank balances includes share application pending allotment
amounting to Rs. 34,363.59 Lacs.

43,316.63

20,524.33

Cash & Cash Equivalents

15. Other Current Assets

Interest accrued but not due on portfolio loans
Interest accrued but not due on deposits placed with banks
Others Receivable (overdue receivable on loans etc.)
Other Current Assets
Total Other Current Assets

16. Revenue from Operations
Interest income
Interest on housing and other loans
Other operating revenue
Fees and other charges
Others
Total Revenue from Operations
17. Other Income

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

1,400.67
134.70
34.39
9.48

773.83
52.74
27.45
-

1,579.24

854.02

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

14,802.70

5,956.87

1,764.05

1,401.39

95.65

20.25

16,662.40

7,378.51

31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Income from ﬁxed deposits with banks

879.95

617.56

Proﬁt on Redemption of Mutal Funds

189.20

-

Income from Display of Advertisements

826.95

1,400.64

Training Development and Consultancy Charges

199.05

76.00

Proﬁt on sale of ﬁxed assets
Provision for expenses no longer required written back
Miscellaneous income
Total Other Income
18. Employee Beneﬁt Expenses

Salaries, bonus etc.

10.50

-

0.48

27.63

2,106.13
31-Mar-19
3,190.84

0.02
2,121.85
31-Mar-18

2,565.71

Provisional Expenses on Employees Stock Option Scheme

407.00

-

Contribution to provident fund

132.03

92.79

Contribution to ESIC

17.66

14.48

Gratuity

46.02

18.04

29.25

16.64

3,822.80

2,707.66

Training and Staﬀ welfare expenses
Total Employee beneﬁt expense
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19. Finance costs

Interest
On Term Loans
On Cash Credit
Bank charges and others
Total Finance Cost
20. Other Expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Telephone expenses
Postage and courier expenses
Repairs and maintenance - others
Rent, rates and taxes
Electricity charges
Insurance charges
Payment to Auditors' (refer details below)
Professional and legal fees
Provident Fund Admin Charges
Loan sourcing cost
Application processing expenses
Computer maintenance
ROC Fees and Stamp Duty
Miscellaneous expenses (indirect tax reversal, admin exp. etc.)
Director Sitting fees
Total Other Expense
As auditor:
Audit fees
In other capacity:
Tax Audit
Certiﬁcation and other
Total Fee to Auditor
21. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
22. Provisions and Write-oﬀs

31-Mar-19

6,820.10
2.39
187.39
7,009.88
31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

1,965.12
0.77
88.74
2,054.63
31-Mar-18

36.31
84.49
16.73
36.28
52.51
205.48
35.99
38.60
29.75
195.13
8.73
501.88
397.67
67.50
0.60
54.26
5.30
1,767.21

26.75
50.75
6.58
27.71
33.91
174.60
25.24
28.59
15.75
217.44
7.17
257.43
323.81
37.44
194.92
116.23
2.42
1,546.74

18.00

13.00

2.00
9.75
29.75

0.75
2.00
15.75

31-Mar-19
44.07
44.07
31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18
59.89
59.89
31-Mar-18

Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for non-performing assets / (write backs)
Recovery against loans written oﬀ
Bad debts written oﬀ - housing and other loans

419.18
19.65
(7.51)
68.24

402.27
(21.18)
0.05

Total Provisions & Write-oﬀs

499.56

381.14
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23. Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reﬂects net proﬁt attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average no. of equity shares
used in computation of basic and diluted EPS:
Particulars

31-Mar-19

Net proﬁt attributable to equity shareholders for basic and diluted EPS

3,765.33

31-Mar-18
1,961.01

No. of shares No. of shares
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Dilutive eﬀect of outstanding Stock Options
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS
Nominal Value per share (Rs.)
Basic earnings per equity share (Rs.)
Eﬀect of outstanding Stock Options (Rs.)
Diluted earnings per equity share (Rs.)

35,382,180
313,283
35,695,463
100.00
10.64
(0.09)
10.55

27,934,554
27,934,554
100.00
7.02
7.02

24. General
24.1 Provision for Non-performing Assets and Standard Assets
Particulars

Standard

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ended March 31, 2019
Standard
Doubtful
Loss

Total

Loans*
Housing Loans
Loan Against Properties
Total Loans
Provision

91,045.65
43,841.79
134,887.44

82.46
37.47
119.93

-

-

91,128.11
43,879.26
135,007.37

Housing Loans
Loan Against Properties
Total Provisions

574.45
327.54
901.98

13.55
6.10
19.65

-

-

588.00
333.64
921.63

* "Amount Outstanding" includes Balance principle + Accrued interest + Other charges

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars

Standard

For the year ended March 31, 2018
Standard
Doubtful
Loss

Total

Loans*
Housing Loans
Loan Against Properties
Total Loans
Provision

49,075.49
25,318.94
74,394.43

-

-

-

49,075.49
25,318.94
74,394.43

Housing Loans
Loan Against Properties
Total Provisions

318.49
164.31
482.80

-

-

-

318.49
164.31
482.80

24.2 Contingent liabilities and commitments
Particulars
Contingent liability

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19

31-Mar-18

Nil

Nil

4,706.72

4,054.32

Commitments
Capital Commitments
Undisbursed commitments
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24.3 Retirement Beneﬁts
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund for qualifying employees to Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. Contributions to Deﬁned Contribution Plan, recognized as expenses for the year are as under:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars

31-Mar-19

Employers Contributions to Provident Fund

31-Mar-18

132.03

92.79

The Company has a deﬁned beneﬁt gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed ﬁve years or more of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The following table
summarises the component of net beneﬁt expense recognised in the Statement of proﬁt and loss and amounts
recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans based on Acturial report and relied upon by auditors.
Expenses recognized in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
Particulars
31-Mar-19
Current Service Cost
26.46
Past Service Cost
0.90
Interest Cost
4.92
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Losses / (Gain)
13.74
Losses / (Gains) on “Curtailments and Settlements”
Total Expenses to be recognized in the Statement
46.02
of Proﬁt and Loss
Amount Recognised in the Balance sheet
Particulars
Closing Present Value of obligations
Closing Fair Value of plan assets
Liability Recognised in the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-18
20.40
2.58
(4.72)
18.26

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19
79.05
79.05

31-Mar-18
33.04
33.04

Change in in the present value of the deﬁned beneﬁt obligation are as follows:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars
31-Mar-19
31-Mar-18
Opening Present Value of Obligation
36.63
14.77
Current Service Cost
26.46
20.40
Interest on Deﬁned Beneﬁt Obligation
4.92
2.58
Beneﬁts Paid
Net Actuarial Losses / (Gains) Recognized in Year
13.74
(4.72)
Past Service Cost
3.60
Liabilities Assumed on Acqusition/
(Settled on Divestiture)
Closing Present Value of Obligations

81.75

36.63

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Particulars
31-Mar-19
31-Mar-18
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets
Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial Gains / (Losses)
Contributions by Employer
Beneﬁts Paid
Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company’s
plans are shown below:
Particulars
Mortality Rate Table
Discount Rate
Salary Escalation Rate
Particulars
Deﬁned beneﬁt obligation
Plan Asset
Surplus / (Deﬁcit)
Experience Adj. on plan liabilities
Experience Adj. on plan asset
Expected Contribution Next Year

31-Mar-19
IALM 2012 - 14
7.10%
12.00%

31-Mar-18
IALM 2006 - 08
7.80%
12.00%

2018 - 19
81.75
(81.75)
9.48
0.16

2017 - 18
36.63
(36.63)
7.54
0.09
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2016 - 17
14.77
(14.77)
2.76
0.03

2015 - 16
2.25
(2.25)
-
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24.4 Employee Stock Option Plan
Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 - Scheme I
The decision to introduce Vastu Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (hereinafter called “Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 ‒
Scheme I” or referred as “The Scheme”) was taken by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on 21st July 2017, and was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 23rd March 2018. The plan provides for
issuance of Stock options to eligible employees based on ESOP committeeʼs recommendations. Under the Plan, the options vest
not later than maximum period of 10 (Ten) years from the date of the Grant.
Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 - Scheme II
The decision to introduce Vastu Employees Stock Option Scheme, 2018 (hereinafter called “Employees Stock Options Plan 2018 ‒
Scheme II” or referred as “The Scheme”) was taken by the Board of Directors at the meeting held on 8th August 2018, and was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 21st August 2018. The plan provides for
issuance of Stock options to eligible employees based on ESOP committeeʼs recommendations. Under the Plan, the options vest
not later than maximum period of 10 (Ten) years from the date of the Grant.

Particulars
Scheme Name
Options approved to be issued as ESOPs
Date of Grant
Options granted
Options Vested
Exercise Price (in INR)
Method of Settlement

Scheme I
Employees Stock
Options Plan 2018

Scheme II
Employees Stock
Options Plan 2018

2,000,000
22nd Apr 2018
1,841,400
Nil
100
Equity

500,000
2nd Nov 2018
462,500
Nil
100
Equity

Scheme I
Nil
1,841,400
Nil
Nil
Nil
1,841,400
Nil

Scheme II
Nil
462,500
Nil
Nil
Nil
462,500
Nil

Reconciliation of options
Particulars
Options outstanding at April 1, 2018
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired/ Lapsed during the year
Outstanding at March 31, 2019
Exercisable at March 31, 2019

As per Rule 12(9) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, details of options granted to Key Managerial
Personnel and employees options amounting to Five percent or more are as below:
Name of the Employee
Sandeep Menon
Sujay Patil
Ravichandra Madapati

No. of Option Granted
1,000,000
350,000
1,30,000

Employee stock options Accounting value of stock options is determined on the basis of “intrinsic value” representing the excess
of the fair value of the share on the date of grant over the exercise price of the options granted under the Employees Stock
Option Plan, and is being amortised as “Deferred employees compensation” on a straight-line basis over the vesting period in
accordance with the Guidance Note (GN) 18, Share Based Payments, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI)
The Black-Scholes Model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following:
Particulars
Share price as on the date of grant (INR)
Exercise Price (INR)
Expected Volatility (%)
Life of the Options granted (years)
Risk free Interest rate (%)
Expected Dividend rate (%)
Fair Value of Options (INR)
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Scheme I
130
100
12.25%
9.07
7.35%
Nil
78.71

Scheme II
130
100
12.25%
9.6
7.35%
Nil
80.67
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The Company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the Company used the fair value model to
determine compensation, its proﬁt after tax and earnings per share as reported would have changed to the amounts as
indicated below:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars
2018 - 19
Proﬁt after tax as reported
3,765.33
Add: ESOP cost using intrinsic value method (net of tax)
407.00
Less: ESOP cost using fair value method (net of tax)
1,074.71
Proﬁt after tax (adjusted)
3,097.62
No. of Shares for Basic EPS
35,382,180
Basic EPS (Rs. per share)
8.75
No. of Shares for Diluted EPS
36,346,817
Diluted EPS (Rs. per share)
8.52
24.5 Related Party Disclosures:
(a)

List of related parties:
i. Holding Company
Plenty Private Equity Fund I Limited
ii. Subsidiary Company
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited
iii. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary wef 01st Sept 2017
Anil Gupta - Company Secretary from 01st July 2016 till 11th August 2017

(b) Disclosure of related party transactions:
S. No.

Nature of transactions

1

Investment in Equity Shares
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

2

Managerial Remunerations (included in employee beneﬁt exps.)
Sandeep Menon - Managing Director
Sujay Patil - Chief Financial Oﬃcer
Anil Gupta - Company Secretary from 01st July 2016 till 11th
August 2017
Pallavi Bhambere - Company Secretary wef 01st Sept 2017

3

Reimbursement of Expenses
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-19
250.00

-

300.00
145.00
-

250.80
129.00
0.84

5.61

2.10

4.02

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(c) Amount due to / from related parties:
S. No.
1

Nature of transactions
Subsidiaries (Payable) / Receivable (Net)
Vastu Finserve India Private Limited

31-Mar-19
4.02

(d) There are no transaction other than sitting fees paid to Non-Executive director details are as under:
S. No.
1

Nature of transactions
Sitting Fees
Puranam Hayagreeva Ravikumar
Girija Shankar Nayak

31-Mar-18

31-Mar-19
3.50
1.80

31-Mar-18
-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-18
1.00
1.35

Note: Related party relationship is as identiﬁed by the Company and relied upon by the auditors.
The transactions with related parties are disclosed only till the relationship exists.
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24.6 Loans & Advances
Balance grouped under loans and advances in certain cases are subject to conﬁrmation and reconciliation.
Impact of the same, if any, shall be accounted as and when determined.
In the opinion of the management the loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized,
paid in ordinary course of business. The provision for all known liabilities are adequate and are not in excess of
amount considered reasonably necessary.
24.7 Other Reporting
a. Segment Reporting
The Company has a single reportable segment i.e. ﬁnancing which has similar risk and return for the purpose
of AS 17 on ʻSegment Reportingʼ notiﬁed under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,2006 (as
amended).The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic.
b. Foreign Currency Reporting
There were no expenditures or outgo in the foreign exchange currency.
24.8 Capital Adequacy Ratio
Items

Mar-19

Mar-18

CRAR (%) *

83.24%

80.92%

CRAR ‒ Tier I Capital (%)

82.25%

79.87%

CRAR ‒ Tier II Capital (%)

0.99%

1.05%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- II Capital

-

-

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

-

-

*Computed considering Share Application Money pending allotment as part of Tier I Capital.
(Rs. in Lakhs)

24.9 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category

Mar-19

Mar-18

a) Direct exposure
(i) Residential Mortgages Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will
be occupied by the borrower or that is rented;
- Individual housing loans upto Rs. 15 lakh

49,616.44

28,717.08

- Individual housing loans above Rs. 15 lakh

35,657.45

20,358.41

- Other loans

48,328.66

25,318.94

Nil

Nil

a. Residential

Nil

Nil

b. Commercial Real Estate

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

(ii) Commercial Real Estate ** Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (oﬃce
buildings, retail space, multipurpose commercial Premises, multi-family
residential buildings, multi-tenanted Commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction
etc.) Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits
(iii) Investments in Mortgaged
securitised exposures -

Backed

Securities

(MBS) and other

b) Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank
(NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

** the exposure represents construction ﬁnance for residential building.
In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the
management which have been relied upon by the auditors.
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24.10 Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
FY 2018-19
Liabilities
Particulars

Borrowings
from Banks &
Others

1 month
Over 1 month to 2 months
Over 2 months to 3 months
Over 3 months to 6 months
Over 6 months to 1 year
Over 1 year to 3 years
Over 3 years to 5 years
Over 5 years to 7 years
Over 7 years to 10 years
Over 10 years
Total

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Assets

Market Borrowings
- CP NCD ICD

489.36
1,013.10
1,661.67
3,332.66
7,018.43
28,360.87
12,316.26
611.68
917.52
1,376.36
57,097.91

192.31
10,192.31
384.62
31,153.85
41,923.08

Advances

Investments

212.91
232.82
234.81
723.10
1,534.36
7,412.95
9,922.60
13,158.70
27,574.79
72,595.54
133,602.57

8,030.00
49.76
250.00
8,329.76
(Rs. in Lakhs)

FY 2017-18
Liabilities
Particulars

Borrowings
from Banks &
Others

1 month
Over 1 month to 2 months
Over 2 months to 3 months
Over 3 months to 6 months
Over 6 months to 1 year
Over 1 year to 3 years
Over 3 years to 5 years
Over 5 years to 7 years
Over 7 years to 10 years
Over 10 years
Total

313.74
367.37
758.08
1,440.04
3,576.94
16,471.67
11,125.95
204.80
307.20
462.30
35,028.09

Assets

Market Borrowings
- CP NCD ICD
192.31
384.62
1,538.46
384.62
10,000.00
12,500.00

Advances

Investments

126.95
144.81
145.52
448.59
951.20
4,912.89
6,537.28
8,618.83
17,775.06
34,733.30
74,394.43

-

In computing the above information, certain estimates, assumption and adjustments have been made by the management
which have been relied upon by the auditors
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(Rs. in Lakhs)

24.11 Reserve Fund under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
a)
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Previous
Year

Current
Year
627.65

77.59

-

-

627.65

77.59

1,125.00

550.06

-

-

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

-

-

Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act,
b) 1961 which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of
the NHB Act, 1987

-

-

1,752.65
-

627.65
-

b)

Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under, Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c)

Total

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add :

Less :

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into
b) account for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

Balance at the end of the year
a)
Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
b)

Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(vii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account
for the purposes of Statutory Reserve under , Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c)
Total
1,752.65
627.65
The special reserve created as per Section 29 C of the NHB Act, 1987, qualiﬁes for deduction as speciﬁed u/s 36 (1)
(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and accordingly Company has been availing tax beneﬁts for such transfers.
24.12 Investments

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars

1. Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Outside India
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India
(b) Outside India
(iii) Net value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Outside India
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opening balance
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year
(iii) Less: Write-oﬀ / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year
(iv) Closing balance

Previous
Year

Current
Year

8,329.76
-

-

-

-

8,329.76
-

-

-

-

24.13 Derivatives
The Company has not entered into any derivatives transaction during the said year.
24.14 Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)
Particulars
(i) The notional principal of swap agreements
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulﬁl their obligations under the
agreements
(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $
(v) The fair value of the swap book @

Current
Year

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

-

-

-

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on credit and market risk and the accounting policies adopted
for recording the swaps should also be disclosed.
$ Examples of concentration could be exposures to particular industries or swaps with highly geared companies.
@ If the swaps are linked to speciﬁc assets, liabilities, or commitments, the fair value would be the estimated amount
that the HFC would receive or pay to terminate the swap agreements as on the balance sheet date.
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Current
Year

24.15 Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
Particulars
(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-wise)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2018 (instrumentwise)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly eﬀective" (instrumentwise)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly eﬀective" (instrumentwise)
(a)
(b)
(c)

-

-

-

-

24.16 Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
A. Qualitative Disclosure
Not Applicable
B. Quantitative Disclosure
Particulars

Currency
Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
(ii) Marked to Market Positions
(a) Assets (+)
(b) Liability (-)
(iii) Credit Exposure
(iv) Unhedged Exposures

-

24.17 Securitisation
Particulars
1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions*
2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheet
(I) Oﬀ-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a)
(b)
(II) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a)
(b)
4. Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
(I) Oﬀ-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposure to own securitizations
(b) Exposure to third party securitisations
(II) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(a) Exposure to own securitizations
(b) Exposure to third party securitisations
*Only the SPVs relating to outstanding securitisation transactions may be reported here

No. / Amount
-

-

-

-

-

24.18 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset
Reconstruction
Particulars
(i) No. of accounts
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Interest Rate
Derivatives
-

Current
Year
-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-
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-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

24.19 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs
Particulars

Current
Year

(i) No. of accounts
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned
(iii) Aggregate consideration
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value
24.20 Details of non-performing ﬁnancial assets purchased / sold
A. Details of non-performing ﬁnancial assets purchased:
Particulars

Current
Year

(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year
(b) Aggregate outstanding
(c) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
(d) Aggregate outstanding
B. Details of non-performing ﬁnancial assets sold:
Particulars

Current
Year

1. No. of accounts sold
2. Aggregate outstanding
3. Aggregate consideration received

(Rs. in Lakhs)

24.21 Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars
(i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(ii) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;
(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of
equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;
(v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers;
(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies
in anticipation of raising resources;
(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity ﬂows / issues;
(viii) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered)
Total Exposure to Capital Market

Current
Year

Previous
Year
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

24.22 Details of ﬁnancing of parent company products
There are no products of Parent company which are ﬁnanced by Vastu HFC.
24.23 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC
No exposures where the company had exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year.
24.24 Unsecured Advances
No unsecured advances (Refer note 13)
24.25 Miscellaneous
24.25.1 Registration obtained from other ﬁnancial sector regulators
No Registration obtained from other ﬁnancial sector regulators
24.25.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators
A penalty of Rs. 5,000/- was levied, in the month of June '18, by National Housing Bank ("NHB") for Non compliance with the
provisions of Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance Direction, 2016.
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24.25.3 Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year
Sr No

Instrument Type

Name

Rating
Current Year

Rating
Previous Year

1

NCD and Bank Loans

CRISIL Ratings

A- Stable

BBB+ Stable

2

Bank Loans

India Ratings

A- Stable

A- Stable

3

NCD and Bank Loans

Brickworks

BWR A Stable

BWR A Stable

4

Long Term Bank Lines

ICRA

A Stable

NA

24.25.4 Remuneration of Directors
No Remuneration paid to Non Executive directors.
24.25.5 Net Proﬁt or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no material prior period items and ther has been no change in accounting policies followed
ther than those dislcosed in the ﬁnancial statement.
24.25.6 Revenue Recognition
There have been no instances where revenue recogntion has been postponed.
24.25.7 Accounting Standard 21 – Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)
The Company has one wholly owned subsidiary Company and hence Accounting Standard 21
‒ Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) is applicable.
24.26 Additional Disclosures
24.26.1 Provisions and Contingencies
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in
Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
1. Provisions for depreciation on Investment
2. Provision made towards Income tax
3. Provision towards NPA
4. Provision for Standard Assets
5. Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

Current
Year
1,528.88
19.65
419.18
-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
737.48
402.27
-

24.26.2 Draw Down from Reserves
There has been no draw down from Reserves during the year
24.26.3 Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
24.26.3.1 Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)
Particulars
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Current
Year
-

Previous
Year
-

Current
Year
1,295.48
0.97%

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
986.31
1.33%

Current
Year
1,295.48

Previous
Year
986.31

24.26.3.2 Concentration of Loans & Advances
Particulars
Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC

(Rs. in Lakhs)

24.26.3.3 Concentration of all Exposure (including oﬀ-balance sheet exposure)
Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure
of the HFC on borrowers / customers

0.97%

24.26.3.4 Concentration of NPAs
Particulars
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts

Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited | Annual Report | 2018-2019

Current
Year
118.67

1.33%
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-
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24.26.3.5 Sector-wise NPAs
Sector

Sr No
A
1
2
3
4
B
1
2
3
4

Housing Loans:
Individuals
Builders/Project Loans
Corporates
Others (specify)
Non-Housing Loans:
Individuals
Builders/Project Loans
Corporates
Others (specify)

Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that sector
0.09%
0.08%
-

24.26.3.6 Movement of NPAs
Particulars
(I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
(II) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance
b) Additions during the year
c) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance
(III) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance
b) Additions during the year
c) Reductions during the year
d) Closing balance
(IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance
b) Provisions made during the year
c) Write-oﬀ/write-back of excess provisions
d) Closing balance

Current
Year
0.07%
402.36
283.69
118.67

-

310.40
211.38
99.02

-

91.96
72.32
19.65

-

24.26.3.7 Overseas Assets
Current
Year
-

Particulars
No Overseas Assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Previous
Year
-

24.26.3.8 Oﬀ-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms)
Name of the SPV sponsored
Domestic
No SPVs sponsored

Overseas
No SPVs sponsored

24.27 Disclosure of Complaints
24.27.1 Customers Complaints
Particulars
a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b) No. of complaints received during the year
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

Current
Year
70
69
1

Previous
Year
169
169
-

24.28 Expected future minimum commitment in accordance with AS 19 - Leases during the non-cancellable period under
the lease agreements are as follows:
Particulars
Within one year
Within one - ﬁve years
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Mar-19
32.05
4.58

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Mar-18
35.60
23.24
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24.29 Disclosure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities u/s 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is as under
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : Rs. 17.52 Lakh (Previous year Nil).
(b) Amount spent, utilised and charged during the year - Nil
Company considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors to utilize allocable CSR
budget for the beneﬁt of society. CSR initiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board beneﬁtting the community.
However, the company has just embarked on the journey of ascertained CSR programs. For this reason, during the year,
the Companyʼs spend on the CSR activities has been Nil than the limits prescribed under Companies Act, 2013. The CSR
activities are scalable with few new initiatives that may be considered in future and moving forward the Company will
endeavor to spend the complete amount on CSR activities in accordance with the statutory

24.30 There is no amount due and payable to micro and small suppliers registered under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 at the end of the year. No interest has been paid/ is payable by
the Company during / for the year to these ʻSuppliersʼ. The above information takes into account only those
suppliers who have submitted their registration details or has responded to the inquiries made by the
Company for this purpose.
24.31 Previous year ﬁgures have been re-grouped / re-arranged and re-classiﬁed wherever necessary, to conform
to current year's classiﬁcation.

For M/s T R Chadha & Co LLP
Firm Registration No.: 06711N/N500028
Chartered Accountants
sd/-

Vikas Kumar
Partner
Membership No. 075363

Place: Mumbai
Date : April 26, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vastu Housing Finance Corporation Limited

sd/-

sd/-

Renuka Ramnath
Chairperson

Sandeep Menon
Manging Director

sd/-

sd/-

Pallavi Bhambere
Company Secretary

Sujay Patil
Chief Financial Oﬃcer
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A Wing 203/204 Navbharat Estates Pvt Ltd Navbharat Estates, Barrister Nath Pai Marg,
Sewri, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400015
www.vastuhfc.com
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